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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Introduction 
 

The Philippine Retirement Authority (PRA), with business address at 29
th 

floor, Citibank 
Tower, 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City is a 100 per cent government-owned and 
controlled corporation domiciled in the Republic of the Philippines. 
 
Executive Order No. 1037 dated July 4, 1985 created the Philippine Retirement Park 
System, a corporate body tasked primarily to develop and promote the Philippines as a 
retirement haven providing the best quality of life for targeted retirees.  It also aims to 
accelerate the social economic development of the country and at the same time strengthen 
its foreign exchange position.  To fully reflect the nature of its operation, the Board of 
Trustees (BOT), in its Resolution No. 003 dated July 30, 1985, approved the change of its 
corporate name to Philippine Retirement Authority (PRA).  On August 31, 2001, through 
Executive Order No. 26, the control and supervision of PRA was transferred from the Office 
of the President to the Board of Investments. 
 
PRA is mandated to attract foreign nationals and former Filipino citizens to retire, invest and 
reside in the Philippines, with a vision to make our country a leading and significant 
destination for the world’s retirees, seniors and elderly. PRA recommends to the Bureau of 
Immigration (BI), the issuance of Special Resident Retirees Visa (SRRV), a multiple- entry 
visa with limited tax-free privileges, to all qualified foreigners and former Filipinos who wish 
to make the Philippines their second home. 
 
With the passing of Tourism Act of 2009, also known as Republic Act (RA) 9593 on May 12, 
2009, the supervision of PRA was transferred from the Department of Trade and Industry to 
the Department of Tourism. Formal turn-over ceremony was held at Malacañang Palace on 
March 10, 2010. 
 

On October 22, 2010, in its 245
th 

meeting, the BOT approved the new product offerings 
described and labeled as Simplified and Simple, Marketing-oriented, Integrated, Long-
lasting and Efficient (SMILE), Diplomats Retirement Product, Long-stay Trial Retirement 
Product, Human Touch, Retirement Areas Deemed as Retirement-Friendly (RADAR), 
Services with a Smile (SWS), Deposit Management and Allied Services and Retirement 
Public-Private Partnerships. After the implementing guidelines have been published by the 
UP Law Center, the SMILE program was officially launched on May 5, 2011. 
 
On  June  8,  2011,  a  Memorandum  of  Agreement  (MOA)  was  entered  into  by and 
between PRA and the Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP), making DBP as the only 
authorized depository bank for the requisite visa deposit of the member-retirees. 

 

Although the member-retirees prior to the implementation of the SMILE program were 
enrolled  under a different product portfolio, their contracts continue to be honored and they 
were given the option thru migration to the SMILE program. 
 
At the beginning of the year, PRA has a total of 20,783 retiree-members, 10,639 of 
whom are principals and the remaining 10,144 are dependents.   However, a cumulative 
total of 3,807 have enrolled during the year while 731 members have cancelled their 
membership, leaving a total of 23,859 members as at the end of CY 2013, consisting of 
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12,227 principal and 11,632 dependents. 
 
As at year end, there are 190 accredited marketers, who contributed significantly to the 
total enrollment by 1,614 members as against the 360 walk-in clients during the year. 
PRA had likewise accredited retirement facilities and merchant partners composed of 
hotels, medical and dental facilities, travel agencies, resorts, car rentals, spa and 
wellness services, remittance service, etc. Upon accreditation, these merchant partners 
are tapped to service the needs of PRA’s member-retirees nationwide. Aside from DBP, 
PRA still maintains partnership with nine private banks who service the investment 
requirement of member-retirees who enrolled prior to the implementation of the SMILE 
program. 
 
For purposes of bringing PRA closer to its member-retirees as well as stimulating local 
governments and private sectors to be actively involved in the retirement industry, PRA 
established satellite offices in the following areas: 
 

Area Address 

Baguio PRA Baguio Satellite Office 
Unit 8 Building 3, Nevada Square 
#2 Loakan Road, Baguio City 

Clark-Subic Clark-Subic Satellite Office 
Phil-Kansai Building 
#363 First Street, Balibago, Angeles City 
 Cebu Shop No. 7, 2nd Level, Waterfront Hotel 
No. 1 Salinas Drive, Lahug, Cebu City 

Davao 2nd floor The Royal Mandaya Hotel 
J. Palma Gil St., Davao City 

 

The present PRA administration is headed by General Manager Veredigno P. Atienza while 
the policy-making body of PRA is the Board of Trustees (BOT), composed of the ex-officio 
Members listed in the next page. 
 
 

 
Position 

 

 
Name 

 
Representative/Alternate 

Chairman Hon. Ramon R. Jimenez, Jr. 

Secretary, Department of Tourism 
(DOT) 

 

Vice-Chairman Hon. Veredigno P. Atienza 

General Manager, PRA 

 

Members Hon. Ricardo A. David, Jr. 
Commissioner, Bureau of Immigration 
(BI) 

Hon. Siegfred B. Mison 

Associate Commissioner, BI 

 Hon. Amando M. Tetangco, Jr. 

Governor, Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 
(BSP) 

Hon. Juan J. De Zuñiga, Jr. 

Deputy Governor, BSP 

  Hon. Evelyn R. Cajigal 

Director, Legal Services, 
DOT 
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Financial Highlights 

 

Presented below is the comparative financial position and performance of PRA for the CYs 
2013 and 2012. 
 

    2013   2012   
Increase 
(Decrease) 

Financial Position 
 

  
 

  
 

  

Assets ₱  4,606,984,832 ₱  2,860,838,931 ₱  1,746,145,901 

Liabilities   3,706,994,062   2,199,955,855   1,507,038,207 

Equity ₱    899,990,770 ₱     660,883,076 ₱    239,107,694 

Financial Performance 
 

  
 

  
 

  

Revenue ₱  450,007,205 ₱  318,346,455 ₱  131,660,750 
Expenses   209,010,774   191,345,364     17,665,410 

Excess of Revenue over 
Expenses ₱  240,996,431 ₱  127,001,091 ₱  113,995,340 

 
For the year 2013, PRA generated a gross income of P385.527 million and incurred 
operating expenses of P133.361 million. Net income after tax reached P240.996 million as 
at year end. 
 
PRA contributed to the financial position of the government through the payment of income 
taxes amounting to P64.144 million and the remittance of dividends to the National 
Treasury amounting to P85.268 million. 
 
Also, PRA accumulated a total amount of US$84.336 million visa deposits placed at DBP 
by  the  end  o f  t he  year , ne t  of pre-termination caused by the discontinuance of 
Special Resident Retiree's Visa applications, cancellation of membership from the program, 
withdrawals of excess deposits and conversions into active investments. 
 
Scope of Audit 

 
The audit covered the operations of PRA for Calendar Year 2013. The audit involved 
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depended on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks and material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

 

State Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements 

 
The auditor rendered a qualified opinion on the fairness of the presentation of the 
financial statements of the PRA for the year 2013 for reasons stated in the Independent 
Auditor's Report in Part I of the Report. 
 
 
Summary of Significant Audit Observations and Recommendations 
 
1. The accuracy, reliability and completeness of Property, Plant and Equipment  

(PPE) account balance of P100.554 million is not assured in view of the  non-
maintenance  of subsidiary ledgers; the variance of P5.355 million between the 
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balances in the financial statements and those in the individual schedules of PPE 
items; absence of schedules for PPE items of P.452 million; inability to conduct 
physical inventory; non-adjustment of the cost of completed improvements to 
PPE account; non-reclassification of unserviceable items costing P2.667 to Other 
Assets account; and the non-provision of depreciation expense for IT equipment 
amounting to P2.122 million.   

 
Recommendations: 

 
a. maintain subsidiary ledgers for all PPE accounts; 
 
b. exert efforts to reconcile the balance of the PPE accounts with their schedules to 

ensure accuracy and reliability of the accounts; 
 

c. conduct physical inventory taking of all its PPEs and reconciles the Inventory Reports 
with the book balances; 
 

d. reclassify the completed project to PPE, Office Building-Condominium Unit; 
 

e. provide depreciation expense reckoned from the date of completion and prepare the 
necessary adjustments in the books; 
 

f. draw a journal entry voucher to reclassify unserviceable properties to Other Assets 
account to fairly present these  in the Authority's financial statements, pending its 
disposal; 
 

g. monitor these properties to prevent further deterioration in order to generate higher 
returns from its sale; 
 

h. recognize the depreciation expense on the newly acquired IT Equipment in 
accordance with NGAS policy in order to present a reliable balance of the IT 
Equipment,  depreciation expense and the related accumulated depreciation 
accounts in the financial statements; and 
 

i. maintain subsidiary ledgers for all PPE accounts so that periodic reconciliation 
between the general ledger and subsidiary ledgers could be done so as to reflect an 
accurate balance of the accounts. 

 
 
2. The use of the Cash Deposits from Retirees-Restricted account in the recognition 

of retirees’ share on interest earned from their required visa deposits resulted in 
the overstatement of the said account in the amount of P6.854 million and 
disclosed a variance between Cash Deposits from Retirees–Restricted and Funds 
Held in Trust–Retirees’ Deposits by the same amount.  Likewise, these interests    
were erroneously recorded as Trust Liabilities under Funds Held in Trust-DBP 
Consolidated Interest Payable instead of Interest Payable.  

 
      Recommendations: 

 
a. request DBP to transfer retirees’ share on interest earned from visa deposits to 

PRA’s dollar savings account so that the balance of the Cash Deposits from 
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Retirees-Restricted account will reflect the accurate total visa deposits of retirees as 
of balance sheet date;   
 

b. require the Finance Management Division to prepare a journal entry voucher (JEV) 
reclassifying the entry made amounting to P6.854 million from Cash Deposits from 
Retirees-Restricted to Cash in Bank-DBP Dollar Savings Account since the former 
represents the visa deposits only of the retirees; and 
 

c. reclassify the entry made from Funds Held in Trust-DBP Consolidated Interest 
Payable to Interest Payable in the amount of P6.854 million. 

 
 

3. Full payment of interest of the retirees’ share with regard to interest earned on the 
requisite visa deposits was not given priority. Due to lack of monitoring and 
minimal notice sent to retirees, only P.729 million out of P7.584 million or 9.62 per 
cent was released.  In terms of the number of retirees, only 124 out of the 2,952 
retirees or 4.20 per cent were paid their shares. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommended that Management intensify its efforts in providing interest payments to 
a greater number of retirees.  Furthermore, it is suggested that Management implement 
the procedures in the payment of interests. 
 

4. Summary of total suspensions, disallowances, and charges as of year-end: 
 

 
 

Audit Action 

Beginning 
Balance, 

January 1, 2013 

 
 

Issued 

 
 

Settled 
 

Ending Balance, 
December 31, 

2013 

Suspension P 2,230,021.64  P 589,822.84 P 1,640,198.80 

Disallowances    7,357,938.48     135,875.00    7,222,063.48 

Charges            -               - 

Total P 9,587,960.12  P 725,697.84 P 8,862,262.28 

 
5. Status of Implementation of Prior Years' Audit Recommendations  

 
Of  the 34 prior years’ audit recommendations embodied in the previous year’s Annual 
Audit Report, 27 were implemented, six  were partially implemented and one was not 
implemented. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
 
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Philippine Retirement Authority 
Makati City  
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Philippine Retirement Authority 
(PRA), which comprise the Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2013, and the Statement of 
Income and Expenses, Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the year 
then ended, and a Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory 
Information. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
  
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with State accounting principles and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.   
We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine  Standards on Auditing. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.  An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial  statements, whether  due to fraud or  error. In making those risk  assessments,  the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial     statements  in  order  to  design  audit   procedures   that   are   appropriate   in   the 
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circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the  
entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our qualified audit opinion. 
 
Basis for Qualified Opinion 
  
We considered the following in forming our audit opinion: 
  
1. The accuracy and reliability of the PRAs Property, Plant and Equipment  (PPE) account 

balance of P100.554 million is not assured in view of the  non-maintenance  of subsidiary 
ledgers; the variance of P5.355 million between the balances in the financial statements 
and those in the individual schedules of PPE items; absence of schedules for PPE items of 
P.452 million; inability to conduct physical inventory; non-adjustment of the cost of 
completed improvements to PPE account; non-reclassification of unserviceable items 
costing P2.667 to Other Assets account; and the non-provision of depreciation expense for 
IT equipment amounting to P2.122 million. 

 
2.   The use of the Cash Deposits from Retirees-Restricted account in the recognition of 

retirees’ share on interest earned from their required visa deposits resulted in the 
overstatement of the said account in the amount of P6.854 disclosed a variance between 
Cash Deposits from Retirees–Restricted and Funds Held in Trust–Retirees’ Deposits by the 
same amount.  Likewise, these interests were erroneously recorded as Trust Liabilities 
under Funds Held in Trust-DBP Consolidated Interest Payable instead of Interest Payable. 

   
Qualified Opinion 

 
In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Philippine Retirement Authority as of December 31, 2013, and its financial performance 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with State accounting principles. 
 
Report on Supplementary Information Required Under  
BIR Revenue Regulation 15-2010  
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole.  The supplementary information on taxes, duties, and license fees paid or 
accrued during the taxable year described in Note 17  to the financial statements is presented  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements.  Such supplementary information is the responsibility of management.  The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic 
financial statements.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
 
 
COMMISSION ON AUDIT 
 
 

 
OIC - Supervising Auditor 
Audit Team D, Cluster VI 
Corporate Government Sector 
 
 
June 25, 2014 
 



 

 



 

 



PHILIPPINE RETIREMENT AUTHORITY

BALANCE SHEET

December 31, 2013

(With corresponding figures for CY 2012)

Notes 2013 2012

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2a & 3 734,952,240 552,109,171 

Receivables - Net 2b & 4 24,784,693 25,683,918 

Interests receivable -                   2,024,776 

Due from officers/employees-current               62,773 14,455 

Investments - Current 5 175,602,000 120,000,000 

Inventories 7 4,864,417 2,271,531 

Prepaid expenses 6 3,123,012 2,507,627 

Other current assets 8 1,641,977 1,631,977 

945,031,112 706,243,455 

Non-current Assets

Cash Deposits from Retirees - Restricted 16 3,591,650,324 2,041,751,362 

Investments -Non Current 5 30,987,907 73,164,116 

Property and equipment - Net 2c & 9 36,865,403 37,026,392 

Receivables-disallowances and charges 1,335,662 1,335,662 

Due from officers/employees-prior years 1,072,349 1,148,344 

Other receivables 10 42,074 169,600 

          

3,661,953,719 2,154,595,476 

TOTAL ASSETS 4,606,984,831 2,860,838,931 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Inter-agency payables 11 16,497,686 98,069,054 

Deferred credits 12 57,724,453 46,052,873 

Accounts payable 32,735,398 16,743,539

Due to officers and employees 7,959,999 4,315,710

DBP Consolidated Interest Payable 6,854,177 1,897,333 

Other payables 379,316 316,426 

Due to other funds 46,885 37,559 

Trust Liabilities 16 3,584,796,147 2,032,523,361 

LIABILITIES 3,706,994,061 2,199,955,855 

Paid-in capital/equity 63,217,089 63,217,089 

Retained earnings 836,773,681 597,665,987

EQUITY 899,990,770 660,883,076

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 4,606,984,831 2,860,838,931 

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of these financial statements.

(In Philippine Peso)
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PHILIPPINE RETIREMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES

(With corresponding figures for CY 2012)

(In Philippine Peso)

Notes 2013 2012

INCOME

Income from operations: 2d

Management/Conversion fees 137,200,347 142,524,595

Passport and visa application fees 132,068,711 111,105,675

Annual PRA Fees 80,960,406 51,435,936 

Harmonization Fees 3,827,949                    -   

Inspection/Visitorial fees 23,357,307 25,106,198

ID/Registration fees 5,018,169 5,576,216

Affiliation/Accreditation fees 1,558,147 1,562,892

Processing/Service fees 826,705 848,974

Other service income 529,330 333,661

Gross income 385,347,071 338,494,147

OPERATING EXPENSES Sch. 1

Personal services 28,321,170 25,281,619 

Maintenance and other operating expenses 105,035,480 102,938,876 

Financial expenses - bank charges 4,403 11,433 

Total operating expenses 133,361,053 128,231,928 

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 251,986,018 210,262,219 

Other Income (Expense):

Interest income - Regular 11,574,470 15,114,948 

Interest Income - DBP Dollar Placements 28,068,111 7,740,030 

Miscellaneous Income           179,719 119,235 

Gain / (Loss) on foreign exchange 14 24,837,834 (43,121,905)

NET INCOME BEFORE TAX 316,646,152 190,114,527 

Income tax (75,649,721) (63,114,436)

NET INCOME AFTER TAX 240,996,431 127,000,091 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of these financial statements.
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PHILIPPINE RETIREMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(With corresponding figures for CY 2012)

(In Philippine Peso)

Paid-in-capital/ Retained Total

Note Equity Earnings Equity

Balance, January 1, 2012 63,217,089 555,933,571 619,150,660

Net Income for the FY 2012 -                  127,000,091    127,000,091

Dividends payable for FY 2012 13 -                  (85,267,675)     (85,267,675)    

Balance, December 31, 2012 63,217,089      597,665,987    660,883,076    

Net Income for the FY 2013 240,996,431    240,996,431    

Obligated for C.N.A. 2008 & 2009 (1,888,737)       (1,888,737)      

Balance- As of December 31, 2013 63,217,089 836,773,681 899,990,770

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of these financial statements.
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PHILIPPINE RETIREMENT AUTHORITY

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(With corresponding figures for CY 2012)

(In Philippine Peso)

Notes 2013 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Collection of income 357,989,788 329,682,346    

Collection of receivables 30,048,806 22,766,428      

Transfer of Consolidated Interest (PRA's Share) 35,642,727 -                   

Gain on foreign exchange 14 38,809,802 12,294,433      

Interest Income 11,179,191 12,090,337      

Receipt of trust liabilities 474,259 1,617,687        

Receipt of Payables 20,344 13,746             

Payment of guaranty deposits (10,000) (1,783,576)       

Remittance of GSIS/Pag-IBIG/withholding taxes/others (659,938) (1,802,534)       

Purchase of office supplies (2,487,904) (1,914,699)       

Release of cash advances (Due from officers/employees) (938,443) (3,425,916)       

Payment of payables (10,636,797) (10,589,751)     

Loss on foreign exchange 14 (8,901,133) (47,715,163)     

Payment of income tax (64,144,755) (55,535,348)     

Payment of operating expenses (99,774,127) (100,698,231)   

Payment of Dividends 13 (85,267,675) (148,135,845)   

Net cash provided by operating activities 201,344,145          6,863,914 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Maturity of investment in bonds and high yield deposits (15,404,701) 38,740,000      

Purchase of property and equipment:

Library books -                       (100)                 

Office equipment (2,122,442) -                   

Other Machineries & Equipment (39,169) -                   

Information technology (IT) equipment and software (934,764) -                   

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (18,501,076)        38,739,900 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 182,843,069        45,603,814 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 552,109,171 506,505,357

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING 2a & 3 734,952,240      552,109,171 

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of these financial statements.
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PHILIPPINE RETIREMENT AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts in Philippine Pesos unless otherwise stated) 
 
1. General Information 

 
Executive Order No. 1037 dated July 4, 1985 created the Philippine Retirement Park 
System, a corporate body tasked primarily to develop and promote the Philippines as 
a retirement haven providing the best quality of life for targeted retirees.  It also aims 
to accelerate the social economic development of the country and at the same time 
strengthen its foreign exchange position.  
 
To fully reflect the nature of its operation, the Board of Trustees, in its Resolution No. 
003 dated July 30, 1985, approved the change of its corporate name to Philippine 
Retirement Authority (PRA). 
 
PRA recommends to the Bureau of Immigration (BI), the issuance of Special 
Resident Retirees Visa (SRRV), a multiple-entry visa with limited tax-free privileges, 
to all qualified foreigners and former Filipinos who wish to make the Philippines their 
second home. 
 
With the passing of Tourism Act of 2009, also known as Republic Act (RA) 9593 last 
May 12, 2009, the supervision of PRA was transferred from the Department of Trade 
and Industry to the Department of Tourism. Formal turn-over ceremony was held at 
the Malacañang Palace on March 10, 2010. 
 
On October 22, 2010, in its 245th meeting, the BOT approved the new product 
offerings described and labeled as SMILE, Diplomats Retirement Product, Long-stay 
Trial Retirement Product, Human Touch, RADAR, Services with a Smile (SWS), 
Deposit Management and Allied Services and Retirement Public-Private 
Partnerships as embodied under Board Resolution No. 24 series of 2010. 
 
As approved, the SMILE retirement product requires a visa deposit of US$20,000 for 
retiree-applicants who are 35 years old and above while the required visa deposit of 
Ambassadors, members of international organizations and former Filipino citizens 
are maintained at US$1,500.  Such deposits are non-withdrawable except when the 
retiree leaves and/or withdraws from the program. 
 
On June 8, 2011, a Memorandum of Agreement was entered into by and between 
PRA and the Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP), making DBP as the only 
authorized depository bank for the requisite visa deposit of the retiree-members 
under the new product offerings. Under the MOA, the DBP shall accept the requisite 
deposit for the account of PRA primarily from foreign currency funds inwardly 
remitted to the Philippines by the qualified retiree for which a certification of inward 
remittance for each retiree shall be issued and submitted by DBP to PRA. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
 

a. Cash and cash equivalents 
    
  The Authority considers all highly liquid debt instruments with maturity of three 

months or less from date of acquisition to be cash equivalents. 
    
 

b. Provision for doubtful accounts 
 

This is provided for visitorial fees receivable, pertaining to accounts of member-
retirees considered delinquent, that is, if it is outstanding/unpaid for three 
consecutive years.  Provision was also made for the following accounts:  

 
b.1. Accreditation fee of marketers who opted not to renew their accreditation 

with PRA after the one-year expiration period; 

b.2. Management fees from Bankwise, Inc. (Note 10). 
 
 

c. Property and equipment 
 

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Significant improvements and renewals, including incidental costs are 
capitalized. The straight-line method of depreciation is being used based on the 
estimated life of the assets less ten percent residual/scrap value in accordance 
with the New Government Accounting System as follows: 

 
Assets Estimated Life 

Office building 30 years 

Office equipment   5 years 

Furniture and fixture 10 years 

IT and software   5 years 

Library Books 7 years 

Technical and scientific equipment 10 years 

Motor vehicle   7 years 

 
 

d. Income recognition 
 

The modified accrual method is used in recognizing income. 
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3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

This account consists of: 
 

 2013 2012 

   

Cash in Bank-Forex, Time Deposits 680,046,513 523,145,538 

Cash in Bank-Forex, Savings Account LBP 44,012,619 26,597,175 

Cash in Bank-Peso, Current Account LBP 4,662,182                - 

Cash in Bank-Peso, Current Account LBP 
Cebu Branch 

 
2,067,862 

 
809,746 

Cash - Collecting Officers 2,007,723 648,729 

Cash in Bank-Forex, Savings Account LBP 
Cebu Branch 

 
1,541,474 

 
619,424 

Cash in Bank-Forex, Savings Account DBP 373,908 113,897 

Petty Cash Fund 145,738 102,394 

Cash in Bank-Peso, Savings Account DBP 94,221 72,268 

   

Total 734,952,240 552,109,171 

  
       
4. Receivables - Net 
 

This account consists of: 
   

  

 
 

        2013 
 

      2012 
 

   

Current Assets:    

Visitorial fees (VF)  37,123,079      37,716,861 

Management fees  12,322,151      12,569,545  

Harmonization fees 459,467           517,516  

DBP Retirees' Deposit 0 0 

Allowance for doubtful accounts-VF 
  

(25,120,004)     (25,120,004)   

 

Total 
 

   24,784,693 
 

25,683,918 

 
 

a. Visitorial fees receivable represents annual fees due from retirees who have 
converted their pre-requisite deposits into active investments, at the rates 
ranging from 0.5 to 1.5% of the total amount invested.   

 
Since May 29, 2006, the Special Reduced Deposit (SRD) scheme was 
implemented, modifying the amount of required deposits as well as the visitorial 
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fees for the conversion of deposits into active investments covered by this 
scheme.  The minimum qualifying deposit and visitorial fee rates applicable to 
those enrolled under the SRD Program for the principal retiree-applicant are as 
follows: 

 
 Minimum Qualifying Deposit: 
 

Age From To 
  35 to 49 years old US$ 75,000 US$ 50,000 
50 years old and 

above 
US$ 50,000 US$ 20,000 

 
Visitorial Fees: 
 

Amount of Deposit 
Converted 

Annual VF Collected 

US$ 20,000 US$ 500 or its peso 
equivalent 

US$ 50,000 US$ 750 or its peso 
equivalent 

 
Retirees who had been delinquent in paying VF for more than three years were 
sent collection letters/notices.  After three notices and the retirees still failed to 
pay, they were placed on a watch list published in three leading newspapers of 
general circulation.  If after publication and the retirees still fail to remit the VF, 
their SRRV shall be recommended to the BI for cancellation and the receivables 
shall be recommended to the BOT to be written off from the books of accounts. 
 

In the implementation of the new product offerings described in the General 
Information portion, the SRD Program is now referred to as “Classic”. 

 
b. Management fees receivable represents accruals of estimated fees due from 

PRA accredited banks equivalent to 1.5% of the outstanding daily balance of 
retirees’ deposits. 
 

c. Harmonization fees are amounts collected pursuant to Board Resolution No. 92 
series of 2007, otherwise known as the harmonization of the old and new 
schemes of deposit. A harmonization fee of 1.5% per annum is levied by PRA on 
the retiree in consideration for the release of the amounts in excess of the 
required deposit under the modified SRD scheme.   
 
 

5. Investments 
 

This account represents investments in Treasury and retail bonds, Peso high yield 
deposit, and Negotiable certificate of time deposit (NCTD) with maturity of three 
months or less from the date of placement are classified under current assets. All 
other investments with maturity of more than three months are treated as non-
current. The other non-current investments in stocks are in golf shares of Baguio 
Country Club Corporation.  
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Details are as follows:      

     

   
       2013      2012 

   

Current    

Investments in high yield deposit 175,602,000      120,000,000 

    

   

  175,602,000      120,000,000 

   

Non-current  

Investments in NCTD -  

Held to maturity-investment in bonds    

(long term) 30,387,907 72,564,116 

Investment in stocks 600,000 600,000 

   

  30,987,907        73,164,116 

 
 
6. Prepaid Expenses 
            

This account consists of: 

      

   

    2013   2012 

   

Deferred charges   2,648,356    2,032,971  
Other prepaid expenses      474,656       474,656  

   

  3,123,012 2,507,627 

 
 
7. Inventories   
            

This account consists of:   

   

           2012          2013 

   

Office supplies inventory 4,780,867 2,187,981  
Other office supplies          83,550          83,550 

   

  4,864,417 2,271,531 

 
  



                                                                         

  
15 

8. Other Current Assets 
 

This account consists of guaranty deposits or amounts deposited with service 
providers/suppliers to guarantee performance of obligation, such as PLDT, lessors of 
the buildings occupied by the Authority, and others.  However, major composition of 
the guaranty deposits was paid to BDO UNIBANK, INC representing Security deposit 
(3 months and parking). 

     
              
9. Property and Equipment - Net 

 
The details of the account are shown below: 
 

  Office/IT   

  Equipment,   

  Furniture,   

 Land and Fixtures Motor   

  Building and Others Vehicles Total 

Cost:     

Balance, January 1, 2013 56,503,341 26,569,725 13,788,798  96,861,864  

Additions* -   3,691,874 - 3,691,874 

Disposals* -      -                      

Balance, December 31, 2013 56,503,341 30,261,599  13,788,798  100,553,738 

 
Accumulated Depreciation:     

Balance, January 1, 2013 29,704,853 20,555,847 9,574,771 59,835,471 

Additions 1,398,347 1,340,556 1,113,961 3,852,864 

Disposals   -  -  -    - 

 31,103,200 21,896,403 10,688,732 63,688,335 

     

Net book value, Dec. 31, 2013 25,400,141 8,365,196 3,100,066 36,865,403 

Net book value, Dec. 31, 2012 26,798,487 6,013,878 4,214,027 37,026,392 

     

*Major composition of the difference were - purchase of laptops and desktops. 
 
 

10. Other Receivables  
 

The account represents outstanding receivables from marketers and resigned 
officers and employees presented in the Balance Sheet as part of the Current Assets 
in previous years, subsequently classified as Non-current Assets and now provided 
with sufficient allowance for doubtful accounts.  

 
Comparative figures are in the next page: 
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                2013          2012 

   

Management fees receivable 3,450,556 3,450 ,556 

Other receivables 1,386,448 1,248,401 

Allowance for doubtful accounts (4,529,357) (4,529,357) 

   

  307,647 169,600 

   

 
Management fees receivable represents dues from Bankwise, Inc., whose 
Memorandum of Agreement was terminated on April 10, 2006. Collection had 
already been endorsed to the OGCC for legal action considering that Bankwise, Inc. 
is now under receivership by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

 
 
11. Inter-agency Payables 
 

The account represents the amount of dividends payable to the Bureau of the 
Treasury, last quarter income tax payable to the BIR, other mandatory deductions 
from the salaries of officers and employees, and The Bureau of Immigration for the 
processing of retiree’s visa, required to be paid in 2013, consisting of: 
 

   

             2013            2012 

   

Due to Bureau of the Treasury - 85,267,675 

Due to BIR 16,028,141 12,340,862 

Due to other NGAs 469,545 437,955 

Due to GSIS - 20,277 

Due to Pag-ibig -            1,448  
Due to Philhealth -               837  

   

  16,497,686 98,069,054 

                      
Mandatory deductions from the salaries of officers and employees for FY 2012 were 
already paid in 2013. 

 
 
12. Deferred Credits 
 
     This account consists of: 

   

                  2013                 2012 

Application fees 35,973,621 24,804,851 

Visitorial fees 16,018,795 15,514,793 
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Harmonization fees 4,201,437 4,436,544 

Retirees’ ID 1,348,828 1,075,741 

Other deferred credits 178,444 220,944 

Bids and Awards 3,328   

  57,724,453 46,052,873 

 
13. Dividends Payable 
 

Fifty per cent (50%) of the current net earnings after tax is deductible from retained 
earnings and payable to the Bureau of the Treasury (BTr) pursuant to Republic Act 
7656.  Dividends payable for FY 2012 in the amount of P85,267,675.00 were paid on 
May 16, 2013. Dividends for the FY 2013 were estimated (but not yet booked) in the 
amount of P120,662,426.22, and have been partially paid on April 4, 2014 
amounting to P 60,000,000.00. 

 
 
14. Gain/ (Loss) on Foreign Exchange 

 
Philippine Accounting Standard/International Accounting Standard 21 requires 
companies to determine their functional currency and measure their financial position 
and results of operation in that currency.  The Bureau of Internal Revenue, on the 
other hand, requires the computation of tax liabilities based on transactions 
measured in Philippine peso, hence this entry, which represents the net amount of 
gains and losses from dollar denominated deposits, investments and other 
transactions of the Authority. 

 
 
15. Membership Dues and Contributions to Organizations 
 

The account represents payment of condominium and canteen dues for the 29th floor 
PRA-owned unit at the Citibank Tower and membership dues to the Baguio Country 
Club Corporation. 

 
 
16. Cash Deposits from Retirees – Restricted / Funds Held in Trust – Retirees’ 

Deposits    
 

 These accounts represent the member’s required visa deposit held in trust for the 
account of the retiree-members, placed in NCTD with the DBP in the name of PRA, 
with maturity of one year. The balances of these accounts are equivalent to the 
amount of the members’ required visa deposits, net of withdrawals due to early 
termination for reasons of discontinuance of their SRRV application, cancellation of 
membership from the program, withdrawal of excess deposit or conversion of deposit 
into active investment.   
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17. Requirements under Revenue Regulations (RR) 15-2010 
 
The information on taxes, duties and licenses fees paid or accrued during the taxable 
year required under RR 15-2010 are as follows: 

 
a. Income Tax 

 
Income tax for the CY 2013 amounted to P75,649,721.  Of the said amount, 
P59,621,580  was paid during the year while the amount of P16,028,141 
representing income tax due for the 4th quarter  was paid on April 11, 2014. 

 
b. Taxes on Importation 

 
The Company does not have tax on importations since it does not have any 
importations. 

 
c. Excise Tax 

 
The Company does not have excise tax  since it does not have any transactions 
which are subject to excise tax. 

 
d. Documentary Stamp Tax 

 
The Company did not incur any documentary stamp taxes for the year 2013 as it 
did not execute any documents, instruments, loan agreements and papers 
evidencing the acceptance, assignment, sale or transfer of an obligation, and any 
right or property during the year. 

 
e. Withholding Taxes 

 
The details of total withholding taxes for the year ended December 31, 2013 are 
as  follows: 

 
             Compensation and benefits                                        P3,521,329.53 
             Creditable (Expanded)                                                  3,750,097.21 
             Creditable  (VAT)                                                          2,633,486.38 
             Total                                                                            P9,904,913.12 
 

f. Deficiency Tax Assessment and Tax Cases 
 
PRA does not have any deficiency tax assessments with the BIR or tax cases 
outstanding or pending in courts or bodies outside the BIR. 
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AUDIT OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
1. The accuracy, reliability and completeness of Property, Plant and Equipment  

(PPE) account balance of P100.554 million is not assured in view of the  non-
maintenance of subsidiary ledgers; the variance of P5.355 million between the 
balances in the financial statements and those in the individual schedules of PPE 
items; absence of schedules for PPE items of P.452 million; inability to conduct 
physical inventory; non-adjustment of the cost of completed improvements to 
PPE account; non-reclassification of unserviceable items costing P2.667 to Other 
Assets account; and the non-provision of depreciation expense for IT equipment 
amounting to P2.122 million. 
 
1.1. Non-maintenance of Subsidiary Ledgers (SLs) 

 
1.1.1. Section 29 of PD 1445 provides that controlling accounts in the general 

ledger shall be supported by details in the subsidiary ledgers. SLs provide 
the detailed individual balances making up the general ledger total.  SLs 
support the general ledger and also provide further breakdowns of financial 
statements totals where desired. 

 
1.1.2. Under the New Government Accounting System (NGAS), the regular 

agency books under the manual system of government accounting  shall 
consist, among others, of ledgers, particularly general ledger and subsidiary 
ledgers including those for PPE and Construction in Progress. 

 
1.1.3. Our audit of the PPE accounts with balance of P100,553,738.31 revealed 

that these were not supported with subsidiary ledgers, particularly the 
Property, Plant and Equipment Ledger Card (PPELC). The PPELC which is 
supposed to be maintained by the Accounting Unit is the support record or 
the subsidiary ledger of the respective PPE accounts.  Therefore, these two 
sets of records should always reconcile.  For control purposes, any 
difference should be immediately examined and verified. 

 
1.1.4. We recommended that Management maintain subsidiary ledgers for 

all PPE accounts. 
 

1.1.5. Management stated that they are maintaining a soft copy of the subsidiary 
ledgers of all PPE accounts and they can issue a printed copy of it anytime. 

 
1.1.6. Upon receipt of their comments, the Audit Team requested for the printing 

of the said  subsidiary ledgers being referred to by management and found 
out that what they are referring to  is the depreciation schedule being 
prepared by one of the finance staff which is used as supporting schedule 
in taking up the monthly depreciation of  their PPEs.  In fact it was only in 
July 2014 that the subsidiary ledgers being required to be maintained were 
being prepared. 
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1.2. Unreconciled Balances  
 
1.2.1. Verification of the book balances of the PPE account with  their respective 

schedules disclosed unreconciled balances  of P5,355,183.53 as shown 
below: 

 

Asset Description Per  TB/FS Per Schedule Discrepancy 

Other Structures P    189,722.48 P       71,128.98 P  118,593.50 

Leasehold 
Improvements 

    516,609.31     174,000.00 342,609.31 

 
Office Equipment 

 
  2,529,916.43 

 
2,528,016.51 

 
      1,899.92 

Furniture and 
Fixtures 

     6,420,788.36 
 

6,420,788.39  (             .03) 

IT Equipment & 
Software 

   18,012,571.32 13,119,891.37 4,892,679.95 

Other Equipment      774,042.96    774,042.08               .88 

Motor Vehicles    13,788,798.50 13,789,398.50  (        600.00) 

Total P42,232,449.36 P 36,877,265.83 P5,355,183.53 

 
1.2.2. Aside from the fact that the balance of the above accounts were not 

reconciled with their schedules, our verification also disclosed that the 
following PPE accounts were not supported with schedules showing a total 
of P452,048.60. 

 

Asset Description Amount 

Other Leasehold Improvements P   120,826.50 

Library Books        45,022.10 

Construction/Development in 
Progress 

     286,200.00 

T o t a l P   452,048.60 

 
1.2.3. As a result, the accuracy and reliability of the account balances is not 

assured. There is no certainty that the balances of the PPE accounts in the 
financial statements are free from errors due to non-maintenance of 
subsidiary ledgers and unreconciled balances noted between the balances 
reflected in the financial statements as against that of their schedules. 
 

1.2.4. We recommended that Management exert efforts to reconcile the 
balance of the PPE accounts with their schedules to ensure accuracy 
and reliability of the accounts. 
 

1.2.5. Management further stated that the PPE accounts namely: Other 
Structures, Other Equipment and Motor Vehicles were already reconciled 
as evidenced by the Journal Vouchers prepared dated April 30, 2014. 
Moreover, they commented that they are exerting more efforts to reconcile 
the balances of the PPE accounts which are still left unbalanced and 
accounts which were not supported with schedules. 
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1.3. Inability to conduct physical inventory of the PPE booked at P97,886,768.37 for  
CY 2013. 
 
1.3.1. Section 490 of the GAAM, Volume 1, provides that physical stock-taking is 

an indispensable procedure for checking the integrity of property 
custodianship.  In all cases, the physical inventory-taking which is required 
semi-annually or annually should be regarded with importance. 
 

1.3.2. A sound internal control requires that whenever an inventory is being 
conducted, all discrepancies between the physical count and book 
balances must be investigated and cleared immediately.  If necessary, 
written explanation shall be required from persons responsible. 
 

1.3.3. During the year, an inventory team was not created to conduct physical 
count of the PRA's PPEs items except those that were already 
unserviceable. Breakdown are as follows: 
 

Particulars Amount 

Office Building-Condominium Unit  P  55,389,982.38 

Other Structures          189,722.48 

Leasehold Improvements          516,609.31 

Office Equipment       2,529,916.43 

Furniture and Fixtures       6,420,788.36 

IT Equipment & Software     18,012,571.32 

Other Leasehold Improvements          120,826.50 

Library Books            45,022.10 

Other Equipment          774,042.96 

Motor Vehicles     13,788,798.50 

Other Property, Plant and Equipment        2,479,257.97 

Construction-in-Progress          286,200.00 

Unserviceable PPEs (w/ physical count)      (2,666,969.94) 

Total P97,886,768.37 

 
1.3.4. The existence, accuracy and completeness of these PPE accounts was not 

established in the absence of the inventory of the PPE items. 
 

1.3.5. We recommended and Management agreed to conduct physical 
inventory taking of all its PPEs and reconciles the Inventory Reports 
with the book balances. 
 

1.3.6. Management submitted a copy of an Office Order issued creating a 
Committee to conduct an annual physical inventory taking of its property, 
plant and equipment for the calendar year 2014. 
 

1.4. Completed improvements still recorded under Construction in Progress account. 
 
1.4.1. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles provides that during the 

construction of a project, all expenses related thereto shall be taken up 
under the CIP account.  The CIP is closed to the appropriate asset account 
and depreciation is computed thereon as soon as the project is completed. 
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1.4.2. The financial statements of PRA as of December 31, 2013 showed that the 
CIP account  disclosed a balance of  P286,200. 
 

1.4.3. In December 1996, PRA acquired a condominium unit for use as its Office 
Building. In 2005, an area intended for  the Office of the Chief Operating 
Officer  underwent renovation at a cost of P286,200 which was recorded in 
the books as CIP.  This was later on occupied by the Marketing 
Department.  The improvements have long been completed and benefits 
have been derived from the use of this improvements but as of this writing,  
the CIP account has not been reclassified to the appropriate PPE account 
particularly, Office Building - Condominium Unit. 
 

1.4.4. The non-reclassification of the CIP to the appropriate PPE account resulted 
in the understatement of PPE, Depreciation Expense, Accumulated 
Depreciation and overstatement of CIP and Retained Earnings accounts. 
 

1.4.5. The estimated unrecognized depreciation for a period of eight years, from 
2006 to 2013  is P109,028.56 using the straight line method of depreciation 
and an estimated remaining  life of  twenty-one years since at the time the 
improvements were constructed, the remaining life of the condominium unit 
is only twenty-one years taking into consideration an estimated useful life of 
thirty years. 
 

1.4.6. We recommended that Management: 
 
a. reclassify the completed project to PPE, Office Building-

Condominium Unit;  and 
 

b. provide depreciation expense reckoned from the date of 
completion and prepare the necessary adjustments in the books. 

 
1.4.7. Management commented that the Financial Management Division is 

exerting their efforts to locate the voucher(s) relating to the CIP charges in 
order to reclassify the same into proper PPE account and to depreciate it 
properly. 
 

1.5. Non-reclassification of unserviceable PPEs amounting to P2,666,969.94 to Other  
Assets account.    
 
1.5.1. Physical inventory showed PRA's unserviceable properties for disposal. 

Verification of the financial statements submitted showed that the following 
properties though for disposal were still included in PPE account since 
these were not  reclassified to Other Assets account  as of December 31, 
2013. These are shown below: 

 

Asset Description Amount 

IT Equipment   P 2,031,583.98 

Office Equipment  401,934.83 

Other Equipment  219,204.93 

Furniture and Fixture    14,246.20 

Total   P 2,666,969.94 
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1.5.2. Interview conducted with the Property Officer showed that he failed to 
provide a copy of the Inventory and Inspection Report for Unserviceable 
Property (IIRUP) to the Financial Management Division since it was their 
practice to give a copy only when the disposal is already consummated.  
While Accounting Unit was fully aware of the inventory taking conducted on 
unserviceable properties since a representative from their office witnessed 
the said inventory. It did not request for a copy of the IIRUP from the 
Property Officer even until now so that a journal entry voucher shall be 
drawn to reclassify these unserviceable properties to Other Assets account. 
 

1.5.3. The non-reclassification of unserviceable properties to Other Assets 
account resulted in the overstatement of the PPE account and the 
understatement of the Other Assets account. 
 

1.5.4. This practice is inconsistent with one of the Basic Policies and Concepts of 
the New Government Accounting System which states that: 
 
"Unserviceable assets shall be reclassified to Other Assets 

account and shall not be subject to depreciation." 
 

1.5.5. As of this writing, disposal of these properties had not  been undertaken in 
compliance with Section 79 of PD 1445 which provides among others, that: 
 
"When government property has become unserviceable , it shall 

be inspected in the presence of  the auditor.  If found to 
be valueless, it may be destroyed in his presence and if 
found valuable, it may be sold at public auction." 

 
1.5.6. We recommended and Management agreed that: 

 
a. draw a journal entry voucher to reclassify unserviceable properties 

to Other Assets account to fairly present these  in the Authority's 
financial statements, pending its disposal; and 

 
b. monitor these properties to prevent further deterioration in order 

to generate higher returns from its sale. 
 

1.5.7. Management stated that a journal entry voucher dated April 30, 2014 was 
prepared to reclassify unserviceable properties from PPE to Other Assets 
accounts. 
 

1.6. Information Technology (IT) Equipment amounting to P2,122,441.60 not provided 
with depreciation expense.  

 
1.6.1. Under the New Government Accounting System (NGAS), the recording of 

depreciation shall start on the month following the month of 
purchase/completion of construction.  The estimated salvage/residual value 
shall be pegged at ten percent of the cost. 

1.6.2. In 2013, PRA purchased IT Equipment amounting to P2,122,441.60. These 
were delivered and accepted on August 23, 2013 as evidenced by the 
delivery receipt and report of acceptance. These are as  follows: 
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Quantity Particulars Unit Price Amount 

31 Desktop computer P40,150.00 P 1,244,650.00 

 1 Desktop Computer (high-
end) Intel Prima Server 
System 

 
162,000.00 

 
      162,000.00 

13 Portable Computer 
(Laptop) 

  51,073.20       663,951.60 

32 Uninterruptible Power 
Supply 

    1,620.00         51,840.00 

Total   P 2,122,441.60 

 
1.6.3. Moreover, review of the depreciation schedule disclosed that these were 

not depreciated contrary to NGAS policy that depreciation shall start on the 
month following the month of purchase. Following this policy, and in order 
to properly compute the amount of depreciation to be charge as expense 
during the accounting period, four factors were considered, namely: 

 
a. depreciable amount (cost less its  residual value) 

                         (2,122,441.60 - 212,244.16)   P1,910,197.44 
b. residual value (2,122,441.60 - 10%)         212,244.16 
c. useful life                        5 years 
d. period of time the IT Equipment were used  

  (September - December 31, 2013)                     4 months 
 

1.6.4. Taking into consideration the above factors, depreciation expense should 
have amounted to P127,346.48 as of December 31, 2013. 
 

1.6.5. This lapse in the implementation of policy resulted in the understatement of 
the depreciation expense and the related accumulated depreciation and 
overstatement of the IT equipment and income accounts by P127,346.48. 
In addition, since subsidiary ledgers for PPEs were not maintained, this 
resulted in the non-reconciliation of the monthly general ledger balances 
with that of the subsidiary ledgers balances. The non-provision of 
depreciation should have been addressed had subsidiary ledgers been 
maintained and periodic reconciliation been done. 
 

1.6.6. We recommended that Management: 
 

a. recognize the depreciation expense on the newly acquired IT 
Equipment in accordance with NGAS policy in order to present a 
reliable balance of the IT Equipment,  depreciation expense and 
the related accumulated depreciation accounts in the financial 
statements; and 
 

b. maintain subsidiary ledgers for all PPE accounts so that periodic 
reconciliation between the general ledger and subsidiary ledgers 
could be done so as to reflect an accurate balance of the accounts. 
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1.6.7. Management submitted the following comments: 
 

a. Depreciation Expense were already provided as evidenced by 
JEV#2080411 dated February 28, 2014. 
 

b. With the approval of the PRA Rationalization Plan, one staff will now be 
assigned to maintain subsidiary ledgers. 

 
 

2. The use of the Cash Deposits from Retirees-Restricted account in the recognition 
of retirees’ share on interest earned from their required visa deposits resulted in 
the overstatement of the said account in the amount of P6,854,176.92 and 
disclosed a variance between Cash Deposits from Retirees–Restricted and Funds 
Held in Trust–Retirees’ Deposits by the same amount.  Likewise, these interests    
were erroneously recorded as Trust Liabilities under Funds Held in Trust-DBP 
Consolidated Interest Payable instead of Interest Payable.   
 
2.1. PRA has created a Retirement Program whereby a qualified retiree may avail of a 

Special Resident Retiree Visa (SRRV).  One of the eligibility requirements for the 
participation in the program is by making a requisite visa deposit by the retiree for 
PRA through inward remittance with Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP) or 
with a bank duly accredited by PRA. Then, it recommends to the Bureau of 
Immigration the issuance of the SRRV. The visa deposits are held in trust for the 
account of the retirees and placed in Negotiable Certificates of Time Deposit with 
the DBP in the name of PRA with a maturity of one year. For the CY 2013, the time 
deposits carry a one percent interest per annum of which 0.3 percent accrues to 
the retirees. 
 

2.2. Normally, the balances of the Cash Deposits from Retirees-Restricted and Funds 
Held in Trust-Retirees’ Deposits should be equal since these are contra accounts.  
However, verification of the entries made to take up the retirees’ share on  interest 
earned showed this entry: 

 
   Cash Deposits from Retirees-Restricted               xxx 

  Funds Held in Trust-DBP Consolidated   
Interest Payable                                             xxx 

 
2.3. In CY 2012, both the PRA’s and retirees’ shares were debited to the above 

account and we recommended that the interest earned from matured visa deposits 
be transferred to its dollar savings account so that the balance of the Cash 
Deposits from Retirees-Restricted account will reflect the accurate total visa 
deposits of retirees as of balance sheet date. PRA implemented the audit 
recommendation with regard to its share only, thus, this resulted in  the 
overstatement of the Cash Deposits from Retirees-Restricted in the amount of 
P6,854,176.92.  The said overstatement is shown below: 

 
    Balances, December 31,2013 
 
    Cash Deposits from Retirees-Restricted   P3,591,650,323.68 
    Funds Held in Trust-Retirees’ Deposits                 3,584,796,146.76 
    Overstatement (Represents retirees' share on interest) P        6,854,176.92 



26 

 

2.4. Furthermore, based on the journal entry, the interest representing the retirees’ 
share on their visa deposits was taken up as Funds Held in Trust-DBP 
Consolidated Interest Payable, hence, these were treated as Trust Liabilities of the 
PRA. 
 

2.5. It is our view that only the requisite visa deposits of the retirees should be 
considered as trust liabilities of PRA, hence, their share on the interest from these 
deposits should not be recorded as trust liabilities but instead as interest payable of 
PRA.  As disclosed under No. 16 of the Notes to FS, which states that these 
accounts represent the members' required visa deposit held in trust for the account 
of the retiree-members, placed in NCTD with the DBP in the name of the PRA, with 
maturity of one year.  The balances of these accounts are equivalent to the amount 
of the members' required visa deposits, net of withdrawals due to early termination 
for reasons of discontinuance of their SRRV application, cancellation of 
membership from the program, withdrawal of excess deposit or conversion of 
deposit into active investment. Therefore, there was no mention or inclusion of 
interest earned on visa deposits on these two accounts (Cash Deposits from 
Retirees-Restricted and Funds Held in Trust-Retirees' Deposits). 
 

2.6. Since the amount of P6,854,176.92 no longer forms part of the visa deposits of the 
retirees and  no longer placed in time deposits unlike that of the visa deposits, PRA 
had lost the opportunity of earning interest/benefits had this amount been 
transferred to its dollar savings account and  if it had been placed even in short 
term time deposits since whatever interest/benefits earned will  redound to the best 
interest of the retirees. 
 

2.7. We reiterated our recommendations that Management: 
 
a. request DBP to transfer retirees’ share on interest earned from visa 

deposits to PRA’s dollar savings account so that the balance of the Cash 
Deposits from Retirees-Restricted account will reflect the accurate total 
visa deposits of retirees as of balance sheet date; 

 
b. require the Finance Management Division to prepare a journal entry 

voucher (JEV) reclassifying the entry made amounting to P6,854,176.92 
from Cash Deposits from Retirees-Restricted to Cash in Bank-DBP Dollar 
Savings Account since the former represents the visa deposits only of 
the retirees; and 

 
c. reclassify the entry made from Funds Held in Trust-DBP Consolidated 

Interest Payable to Interest Payable in the amount of P6,854,176.92. 
 

2.8. Management submitted the following comments: 
 
a. They will integrate the opening of a retirees' separate account for deposit of 

their share in the interest of the requisite visa deposits in the enrollment 
system. 
 

b. JEV#2080472 dated April 30, 2014 was prepared to: 
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 To take up the transfer of interest representing retirees’ share  from Cash 
Deposits from Retirees-Restricted to Cash in Bank-DBP Dollar Savings 
Account and  
 

 Reclassify the account from Funds Held in Trust-DBP Consolidated 
Interest Payable to Interest Payable. 

 
 
3. Guaranty Deposits amounting to P1,641,976.60 included the amount of 

P355,744.40 the refund of which was not demanded by PRA despite the fact that 
the purpose(s) of these deposits had long been satisfied and their corresponding 
contracts have long been terminated. The non-refund deprived the PRA of the 
benefits or use of the said amount. Likewise, P30,000 of the said amount was 
erroneously charged to guaranty deposits instead of  expenses. 
 
3.1. Guaranty deposits represents utility deposits and other similar deposits made/paid 

by PRA to various lessors/suppliers in the performance of their services or delivery 
of goods which are refundable upon termination of the corresponding contracts or 
completion of the purpose/s for which these deposits had been required. 
 

3.2. Based on the schedule submitted, an aging/status of the account was determined.     
Details are shown on the next page: 
 

Aging/Status Amount Remarks 

Over 1 year 

Over 5 years 

Sub-total 

    P  154,000.00  

      201,744.40 

P  355,744.40 

Deposits that should have been refunded to 
PRA since the purpose of such deposits 
have long been satisfied and the contracts 
had already been terminated. 

Active Accounts      1,256,232.20 With active contracts by and between PRA 
and lessors/suppliers. 

Erroneous 
Accounts 

      30,000.00 These should have been charged to 
expense instead of guaranty deposits as 
these represented rentals and membership 
fees. 

Total P 1,641,976.60  

 
3.3. Based on the above aging/status, PRA failed to demand collection of the 

refundable deposits which had long been due them amounting to P355,744.40. 
 

3.4. Prior to the issuance of this audit observation, we discussed this with the Officer-in-
Charge, Administrative Division and this led to the collection of P79,068.20 on  
May 30, 2014 from the lessor where the Cebu Satellite Office was renting before. 
 

3.5. The non-refund by the lessors/suppliers of the deposits to PRA immediately after 
the termination of the contracts or after the purpose of the deposits had been 
consummated, had placed them in a disadvantage position since PRA had been 
deprived of the benefits, advantages and full use of the money due them. 

  



28 

 

3.6. We recommended that Management: 
 
a. demand for the immediate collection of refundable deposits with various 

lessors/suppliers;  
 

b. require the Accounting and Administrative Divisions to  join efforts in the 
monitoring of these deposits as soon as they are due for refund; and 

 
c. prepare an adjusting entry to correct the amount of P30,000 which was 

erroneously recorded as guaranty deposits instead of expenses. 
 

3.7. Management submitted the following comments: 
 
a. The Waterfront Cebu City had already paid P79,068.20 as evidenced by 

OR#5226150 and the check for the remaining balance is still in-process per 
inquiry with their staff. 
 

b. JEV#2080471 dated April 30, 2014 was prepared to reclassify the P30,000.00 
to the account names “Rent Expense and Membership Dues and Contributions 
to Organizations”. 

 
3.8. Management comment under 5.7.a was noted by the Audit Team as mentioned in 

Audit Observation No. 2014-06 (2013) dated June 5, 2014.  In fact, the refund 
made by Waterfront Hotel, Cebu City was a result of the discussion made by the 
Team with the Officer-in-Charge, Administrative Division prior to the issuance of 
the AOM mentioned. 
 

 
Value for Money Audit 
 
 
4. Full payment of interest of the retirees’ share with regard to interest earned on the 

requisite visa deposits was not given priority. Due to lack of monitoring and 
minimal notice sent to retirees, only P.729 million out of P7.584 million or 9.62 per 
cent was released.  In terms of the number of retirees, only 124 out of the 2,952 
retirees or 4.20 per cent were paid their shares. 
 
4.1. The issuance of interest to PRA Retirees based on the established procedure 

prepared by the  PRA Banking Committee as provided in the Process Flow Chart 
are as follows: 
 
a. The Finance Division will generate a report which will contain the computation 

of interest payable to retirees with active account in the DBP. The percentage 
of the interest to be given to the retirees is to be predetermined yearly by the 
PRA Banking Committee.  From June 2011 to May 2012, the banking 
committee established a rate of 0.3 per cent. 
 

b. A distinct and separate account is to be established, in DBP which will be 
exclusively used as a depository account for the interest to be paid to retirees. 
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c. After the account is established, the retirees will be notified that they are 
entitled to receive the interest. 
 

d. The retirees will then decide whether the interest will be credited to their 
account or a separate peso or dollar account in their name will be established 
in DBP.  There will be no direct cash payment to be made to any retiree. 
 

e. A letter from PRA will be sent to all entitled retirees together with a form they 
can use to express how they prefer to receive their interest.  The notice of 
interest payment will also be posted in the PRA website. 
 

f. The PRA Banking Committee will oversee the disbursement of the interest due 
to PRA Retirees. 

 
4.2. Presented below is the table on  Interest Payable of PRA to retirees, viz: 

 

Particulars 2012 2013 Total 

Recorded    

  Number of retirees 668 2,284          2,952 

  Amount P1,930,556.53 P5,652,988.42 P7,583,544.95 

Payments Made    

  Number of retirees 12   112   124 

  Amount       33,223.29     696,144.74      729,368.03 

Balance    

  Number of retirees 656 2,172 2,828 

  Amount P1,897,333.24 P4,956,843.68 P6,854,176.92 

 
4.3. Based on the above table, the following observations were noted: 

 
a. The account showed that P1,930,556.53 and P5,652,988.42 in CYs 2012 and 

2013 respectively, or a total of P7,583,544.95 was booked as interest payable 
to retirees; 
 

b. Of the amount booked, only the amount of P33,233.29 and P696,144.74 for 
CYs 2012 and 2013 respectively, or a total of P729,368.03 was paid to retirees 
as of December 31, 2013; 
 

c. The unpaid interest amounted to P1,897,333.24 in CY 2012 and P4,956,843.68 
in CY 2013, leaving a balance of the  interest payable to retirees amounting to  
P6,854,176.92 as of December 31,2013; 
 

d. Of the 2,952 total retirees entitled to the interest, 12 were paid in CY 2012    
and 112 in CY 2013 for a total of 124 retirees only; and 

 
e. Of the 124 retirees paid as of 2013, 110 of which were paid interest due to  the 

fact that they have either withdrawn from the program or have converted their 
visa deposits into investments thereby, PRA has no choice but to compute and 
pay for the corresponding interest due them while only 14 were paid specifically 
for the interest that was already due them. 
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4.4. Moreover, in our verification and review of the procedures in the issuance of 
interest to retirees, we noted that: 

 
a. There was no predetermined interest rate established by the Banking 

Committee for the period, June 2012 up to  the present since the amount 
booked  was still based on the predetermined rate of 0.3% from June 2011 to 
May 2012; 
 

b. Establishment of a distinct and separate account in DBP which will be 
exclusively used as depository account for the interest to be paid to retirees 
was not followed; 
 

c. Most of the retirees were not notified that they are entitled to receive the 
interest; 
 

d. A letter from PRA was not sent to all entitled retirees together with a form they 
can use to express how they prefer to receive their interest. The notice of 
interest payment was never posted in the PRA website; and 
 

e. The only procedure that was followed was that the PRA Banking Committee 
had overseen the disbursement of interest due to retirees but only to a very few 
retirees. 
 

4.5. The non-implementation of PRA of its procedures in the issuance of interest to 
retirees resulted in the payment of P729,368.03 or 9.62 percent only out of the total 
interest of P7,583,544.95  and  124  or 4 percent only out of the 2,952 number of 
retirees. Likewise, this only shows that PRA is less determined to enforce its own 
procedures in the payment of interest to retirees. 
 

4.6. We recommended that Management intensify its efforts in providing interest 
payments to a greater number of retirees.  Furthermore, it is suggested that 
Management implement the procedures in the payment of interests. 

 
4.7. Management stated that the 0.3 per cent interest rate given to the retirees was 

unanimously decided by the PRA Banking Committee to retain it from the 
established rate on June 2011 – May 2012. PRA believes that giving the almost 
the same rate as offered by the banks can encourage more retirees to enroll. 
 

4.8. It is the Team's position that since the PRA Banking Committee unanimously 
decided to retain the interest rate established for the period June 2011 - May 2012, 
a Committee Resolution should have been issued which should have been the 
basis in taking up the interest payable to retirees for the period, June 2012 - 
December 2013. 
 

4.9. Management further stated that it was the intention of the PRA Banking Committee 
to open an account exclusively for crediting of the interest to be paid to the retirees.  
However, to ensure control and proper monitoring of accounts namely the 
Receiving and Disbursing Account, the opening of another account for the interest 
was postponed.  The focus was towards the handling of the two newly established 
accounts and booking of transactions to be defined that time.  As a process, 
Receiving Account exclusively be for remittances while Disbursing Account will be 
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exclusively for funds ready for disbursement/payment to the retirees.  As such, 
interest due to retirees were also credited to Disbursing Account for the mean time. 
 

4.10. Management likewise stated, that in line with the audit recommendation, PRA is 
now ready to move towards opening of another account with DBP to accommodate 
the retiree's share in the interest in preparation for subsequent release to retiree 
depositors. It already had the sample form "Request Form for Payment of Interest 
Earned" for approval to be posted in the PRA Website.  The Marketing Department 
is now informing retiree-applicants on their inquiry on the interest given by PRA, 
which is due on a yearly basis.  

 
 

5. Cash advances amounting to P327,619.48 were not liquidated within the 
prescribed period contrary to Sections 4.1.3 and 5.1.3 of COA Circular 97-002 
dated February 10, 1997 
 
5.1. Section 4.1.3 of COA Circular 97-002 provides that a cash advance shall be 

reported on as soon as the purpose for which it was given has been served. 
 

5.2. Section 5.1.3 of the said Circular states that liquidation of cash advances on official 
travel is within sixty (60) days after return to the Philippines in the case of foreign 
travel or within thirty (30) days after return to his permanent official station in the 
case of local travel. 
 

5.3. Moreover, the same Section provides that failure of the accountable officer to 
liquidate his cash advance within the prescribed period shall constitute a valid 
cause for the withholding of his salary and the instruction of other sanctions as 
provided for under paragraphs 9.2 and 9.3 of the said circular. 
 

5.4. During the year, cash advances totaling P327,619.48granted for local and foreign 
travels were liquidated beyond 30 and 60 days period which was inconsistent with 
Section 5.1.3 of COA Circular No. 97-002 dated February 10, 1997 as shown 
below: 
 

Check No. Date Amount of Cash 
Advance 

Liquidation 
Period 

No. of Days 
Liquidated* 

2475409 01/17/2013 P   43,400.00      30 days      72 days 

2516953 07/30/2013    100,000.00      30 days      64 days 

2475599 01/28/2013      15,000.00      30 days      41 days 

2080056 07/23/2013    143,859.48      60 days    122 days 

2491701 05/06/2013        8,400.00      30 days             166 days 

2516533 07/08/2013      16,960.00      30 days                62 days 

 
* The No. of Days Liquidated included the 30 and 60 day period to liquidate local 

and foreign travel respectively 
 

5.5. It was likewise noted that cash advances were granted in excess of necessity 
based on the liquidations made. Amount refunded ranged from P4,198 to P 84,011 
representing 41.98 to 84.01 percent of the cash advance granted. Details are 
shown on the next page: 
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Check No. Date Amount of Cash 
Advance 

Amount 
Refunded 

Percentage 
of Refund 

No. of 
Days 

Refunded 

2475409 01/17/2013 P    43,400.00 P  18,016.48 41.51    72 days 

2516953 07/30/2013     100,000.00      84,011.00 84.01    64 days 

2541182 11/22/2013       55,000.00      37,278.00 67.78  
 

Refunded 
within the 
prescribed 

period 

2541083 11/18/2013       15,000.00        5,387.27 35.91 

2541542 12/16/2013         7,000.00        5,673.28 81.05 

2080226 10/30/2013       64,725.00      45,354.75 70.07 

2491597 04/29/2013       10,000.00        4,198.00 41.98 

2491793 05/10/2013       20,000.00      14,800.00 74.00 

2492375 06/11/2013       10,000.00        5,314.00 53.14 

2517324 08/23/2013       10,000.00        6,106.00 61.06 

2476366 03/06/2013       13,900.00        9,940.00 71.51 

 
5.6. Cash advances granted in excess of what was needed may expose the 

accountable officers to possible risks or losses and is not in accordance with sound 
internal control. 
 

5.7. We reiterated our recommendations that Management: 
 
a. strictly enforce liquidations as soon as the purpose for which the cash   

advance  had been served; 
 

b. observe the prescribed period of 30 and 60 days within which to     
liquidate cash advances granted for local and foreign travels, respectively 
in compliance with Section 5.1.3 of COA Circular 97-002; 
 

c. prepare  budget estimates that are realistic enough so that refunds or 
excess cash advances of great percentage as shown under 6.5 will be 
avoided and the accountable officer may not be exposed to possible risk 
or losses; and  
 

d. require the Finance Division to regularly monitor cash advances with 
delayed liquidation and enforce its prompt liquidation. 
 

5.8. Management informed the Audit Team that the Financial Management Division is 
now enforcing the strict liquidation and follow-up of the unliquidated cash advance 
granted in compliance with Section 5.1.3 of COA Circular 97-002.  

 
6. The PRA granted cash advances for the purchase of commemorative watches as 

loyalty memorabilia for employees who had completed continuous and 
satisfactory service to  it for at least 10 years which was inconsistent with the 
loyalty incentive under the PRA Program on Awards and Incentives for Service 
Excellence (PRAISE). 

 
6.1. Under the PRA PRAISE, the loyalty incentive specified for the giving of loyalty 

memorabilia aside from the incentive in the form of cash are shown below: 



33 

 

 

Length of Service Loyalty Memorabilia 

10 and 15 years Commemorative watch 

20 and 25 years Commemorative silver  watch 

20, 35 and 40 years Commemorative gold watch 

 
6.2. Cash advances were granted during the year to recipients of the loyalty incentive 

for the purchase of commemorative watches as loyalty memorabilia for employees 
who had completed 10,  20,and 25 years of service for which a P10,000, P20,000 
and P25,000 cash advances were granted respectively  under the  PRA Program 
on Awards and Incentives for Service Excellence (PRAISE). 
 

6.3. The Audit Team’s comments/observations on the manner the award was given to 
the employees concerned were as follows: 

 
a. Under the PRA PRAISE there was no mentioned of the equivalent amount for 

each length of service  in the giving of loyalty memorabilia, e.g.: 
 
a.1   P10,000.00 for 10 years of service 
a.2      20,000.00 for 20 years of service 
a.3      25,000.00 for 25 years of service 

 
b. The loyalty memorabilia was given to employees in the form of cash advance 

wherein the latter will be the one to decide on what kind of commemorative 
watch they are going to purchase. 
 

c. Upon the grant of the cash advance, the concerned employees purchase a 
watch of her/his choice regardless of quantity and amount for those who prefer 
to purchase a higher value than the amount of cash advanced  as long as he 
has to present the watch purchased for inspection and  submit the required 
official receipt to liquidate the cash advance granted. 
 

d. Delayed liquidation of cash advances to purchase the supposed 
commemorative watch were noted. 

 
6.4. We recommended that Management: 

 
a. stop the practice of granting loyalty memorabilia/incentive by procuring 

through cash advance to be purchased by the recipients themselves; 
 

b. require the PRAISE Committee to come up with an appropriate award 
and/or commemorative item or equivalent  to be purchased for each 
loyalty/length of service category such that the said item to be awarded 
for each category should be of the same value, kind, style, design, make 
and quality; and 
 

c. implement the incentive based  on a duly approved PRA PRAISE. 
 

6.5. Management informed the Audit Team that the PRAISE guidelines are now being 
revised by the PRAISE Committee to come up with an appropriate memorabilia 
since not all employees have the same notion of commemoration. 
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7. We reiterate our prior years’ audit observation that PRA had not been 

incorporating plans and programs for Gender and Development (GAD) in its 
operations contrary to the Philippine Plan for Gender and Development for 1995 – 
2025 as approved under Executive Order No. 273. 
 
7.1. Government agencies are mandated to incorporate plans and programs for GAD in 

their agency under Executive Order No. 273 – Approving and Adopting the 
Philippine Plan for GAD , 1995 – 2025 and Joint Circular No. 2004-1 dated April 5, 
2004 of the Department of Budget and Management (DBM), National Economic 
and Development Authority (NEDA), and National Commission on the Role of 
Filipino Women (NCRFW). 
 

7.2. PRA failed to incorporate gender and development concerns in their planning, 
programming and budgeting processes, commitment contracts, annual budget 
proposals and work and financial plans, which should include activities that are 
either client-focused or organization-focused. 
 

7.3. We recommended that Management incorporate plans and budget for 
Gender and Development in compliance with the Philippine Plan for Gender 
and Development for 1995 – 2025 under Executive Order No. 273.Future 
Gender and Development Plans shall be guided by Joint Circular No. 2012-01 
which provides for the guidelines for the preparation of Annual GAD Plans 
and Budgets and Accomplishment Reports to implement the Magna Carta of 
Women and institutionalize the GAD Focal Point System in compliance with 
Memorandum Circular 2011-01 of the Philippine Commission on Women. 
 

7.4. Management informed that GAD plans, programs, and budgets are now included 
for the CY 2014 which shall be in accordance with the Joint Circular 2012-1 of 
DBM, NEDA and NCRFW. 

 
 
Status of Unsettled Audit Disallowances, Charges and Suspensions 
 
 
Below is the summary of the unsettled audit disallowances, charges and   
suspensions as of December 31, 2013: 
 

 
 

Audit Action 

Beginning 
Balance, 

January 1, 2013 

 
 

Issued 

 
 

Settled 
 

Ending Balance, 
December 31, 

2013 

Suspension P 2,230,021.64  P 589,822.84 P 1,640,198.80 

Disallowances    7,357,938.48     135,875.00    7,222,063.48 

Charges            -               - 

Total P 9,587,960.12  P 725,697.84 P 8,862,262.28 
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AUDIT OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
1. The accuracy, reliability and completeness of Property, Plant and Equipment  

(PPE) account balance of P100.554 million is not assured in view of the  non-
maintenance of subsidiary ledgers; the variance of P5.355 million between the 
balances in the financial statements and those in the individual schedules of PPE 
items; absence of schedules for PPE items of P.452 million; inability to conduct 
physical inventory; non-adjustment of the cost of completed improvements to 
PPE account; non-reclassification of unserviceable items costing P2.667 to Other 
Assets account; and the non-provision of depreciation expense for IT equipment 
amounting to P2.122 million. 
 
1.1. Non-maintenance of Subsidiary Ledgers (SLs) 

 
1.1.1. Section 29 of PD 1445 provides that controlling accounts in the general 

ledger shall be supported by details in the subsidiary ledgers. SLs provide 
the detailed individual balances making up the general ledger total.  SLs 
support the general ledger and also provide further breakdowns of financial 
statements totals where desired. 

 
1.1.2. Under the New Government Accounting System (NGAS), the regular 

agency books under the manual system of government accounting  shall 
consist, among others, of ledgers, particularly general ledger and subsidiary 
ledgers including those for PPE and Construction in Progress. 

 
1.1.3. Our audit of the PPE accounts with balance of P100,553,738.31 revealed 

that these were not supported with subsidiary ledgers, particularly the 
Property, Plant and Equipment Ledger Card (PPELC). The PPELC which is 
supposed to be maintained by the Accounting Unit is the support record or 
the subsidiary ledger of the respective PPE accounts.  Therefore, these two 
sets of records should always reconcile.  For control purposes, any 
difference should be immediately examined and verified. 

 
1.1.4. We recommended that Management maintain subsidiary ledgers for 

all PPE accounts. 
 

1.1.5. Management stated that they are maintaining a soft copy of the subsidiary 
ledgers of all PPE accounts and they can issue a printed copy of it anytime. 

 
1.1.6. Upon receipt of their comments, the Audit Team requested for the printing 

of the said  subsidiary ledgers being referred to by management and found 
out that what they are referring to  is the depreciation schedule being 
prepared by one of the finance staff which is used as supporting schedule 
in taking up the monthly depreciation of  their PPEs.  In fact it was only in 
July 2014 that the subsidiary ledgers being required to be maintained were 
being prepared. 
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1.2. Unreconciled Balances  
 
1.2.1. Verification of the book balances of the PPE account with  their respective 

schedules disclosed unreconciled balances  of P5,355,183.53 as shown 
below: 

 

Asset Description Per  TB/FS Per Schedule Discrepancy 

Other Structures P    189,722.48 P       71,128.98 P  118,593.50 

Leasehold 
Improvements 

    516,609.31     174,000.00 342,609.31 

 
Office Equipment 

 
  2,529,916.43 

 
2,528,016.51 

 
      1,899.92 

Furniture and 
Fixtures 

     6,420,788.36 
 

6,420,788.39  (             .03) 

IT Equipment & 
Software 

   18,012,571.32 13,119,891.37 4,892,679.95 

Other Equipment      774,042.96    774,042.08               .88 

Motor Vehicles    13,788,798.50 13,789,398.50  (        600.00) 

Total P42,232,449.36 P 36,877,265.83 P5,355,183.53 

 
1.2.2. Aside from the fact that the balance of the above accounts were not 

reconciled with their schedules, our verification also disclosed that the 
following PPE accounts were not supported with schedules showing a total 
of P452,048.60. 

 

Asset Description Amount 

Other Leasehold Improvements P   120,826.50 

Library Books        45,022.10 

Construction/Development in 
Progress 

     286,200.00 

T o t a l P   452,048.60 

 
1.2.3. As a result, the accuracy and reliability of the account balances is not 

assured. There is no certainty that the balances of the PPE accounts in the 
financial statements are free from errors due to non-maintenance of 
subsidiary ledgers and unreconciled balances noted between the balances 
reflected in the financial statements as against that of their schedules. 
 

1.2.4. We recommended that Management exert efforts to reconcile the 
balance of the PPE accounts with their schedules to ensure accuracy 
and reliability of the accounts. 
 

1.2.5. Management further stated that the PPE accounts namely: Other 
Structures, Other Equipment and Motor Vehicles were already reconciled 
as evidenced by the Journal Vouchers prepared dated April 30, 2014. 
Moreover, they commented that they are exerting more efforts to reconcile 
the balances of the PPE accounts which are still left unbalanced and 
accounts which were not supported with schedules. 
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1.3. Inability to conduct physical inventory of the PPE booked at P97,886,768.37 for  
CY 2013. 
 
1.3.1. Section 490 of the GAAM, Volume 1, provides that physical stock-taking is 

an indispensable procedure for checking the integrity of property 
custodianship.  In all cases, the physical inventory-taking which is required 
semi-annually or annually should be regarded with importance. 
 

1.3.2. A sound internal control requires that whenever an inventory is being 
conducted, all discrepancies between the physical count and book 
balances must be investigated and cleared immediately.  If necessary, 
written explanation shall be required from persons responsible. 
 

1.3.3. During the year, an inventory team was not created to conduct physical 
count of the PRA's PPEs items except those that were already 
unserviceable. Breakdown are as follows: 
 

Particulars Amount 

Office Building-Condominium Unit  P  55,389,982.38 

Other Structures          189,722.48 

Leasehold Improvements          516,609.31 

Office Equipment       2,529,916.43 

Furniture and Fixtures       6,420,788.36 

IT Equipment & Software     18,012,571.32 

Other Leasehold Improvements          120,826.50 

Library Books            45,022.10 

Other Equipment          774,042.96 

Motor Vehicles     13,788,798.50 

Other Property, Plant and Equipment        2,479,257.97 

Construction-in-Progress          286,200.00 

Unserviceable PPEs (w/ physical count)      (2,666,969.94) 

Total P97,886,768.37 

 
1.3.4. The existence, accuracy and completeness of these PPE accounts was not 

established in the absence of the inventory of the PPE items. 
 

1.3.5. We recommended and Management agreed to conduct physical 
inventory taking of all its PPEs and reconciles the Inventory Reports 
with the book balances. 
 

1.3.6. Management submitted a copy of an Office Order issued creating a 
Committee to conduct an annual physical inventory taking of its property, 
plant and equipment for the calendar year 2014. 
 

1.4. Completed improvements still recorded under Construction in Progress account. 
 
1.4.1. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles provides that during the 

construction of a project, all expenses related thereto shall be taken up 
under the CIP account.  The CIP is closed to the appropriate asset account 
and depreciation is computed thereon as soon as the project is completed. 
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1.4.2. The financial statements of PRA as of December 31, 2013 showed that the 
CIP account  disclosed a balance of  P286,200. 
 

1.4.3. In December 1996, PRA acquired a condominium unit for use as its Office 
Building. In 2005, an area intended for  the Office of the Chief Operating 
Officer  underwent renovation at a cost of P286,200 which was recorded in 
the books as CIP.  This was later on occupied by the Marketing 
Department.  The improvements have long been completed and benefits 
have been derived from the use of this improvements but as of this writing,  
the CIP account has not been reclassified to the appropriate PPE account 
particularly, Office Building - Condominium Unit. 
 

1.4.4. The non-reclassification of the CIP to the appropriate PPE account resulted 
in the understatement of PPE, Depreciation Expense, Accumulated 
Depreciation and overstatement of CIP and Retained Earnings accounts. 
 

1.4.5. The estimated unrecognized depreciation for a period of eight years, from 
2006 to 2013  is P109,028.56 using the straight line method of depreciation 
and an estimated remaining  life of  twenty-one years since at the time the 
improvements were constructed, the remaining life of the condominium unit 
is only twenty-one years taking into consideration an estimated useful life of 
thirty years. 
 

1.4.6. We recommended that Management: 
 
a. reclassify the completed project to PPE, Office Building-

Condominium Unit;  and 
 

b. provide depreciation expense reckoned from the date of 
completion and prepare the necessary adjustments in the books. 

 
1.4.7. Management commented that the Financial Management Division is 

exerting their efforts to locate the voucher(s) relating to the CIP charges in 
order to reclassify the same into proper PPE account and to depreciate it 
properly. 
 

1.5. Non-reclassification of unserviceable PPEs amounting to P2,666,969.94 to Other  
Assets account.    
 
1.5.1. Physical inventory showed PRA's unserviceable properties for disposal. 

Verification of the financial statements submitted showed that the following 
properties though for disposal were still included in PPE account since 
these were not  reclassified to Other Assets account  as of December 31, 
2013. These are shown below: 

 

Asset Description Amount 

IT Equipment   P 2,031,583.98 

Office Equipment  401,934.83 

Other Equipment  219,204.93 

Furniture and Fixture    14,246.20 

Total   P 2,666,969.94 
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1.5.2. Interview conducted with the Property Officer showed that he failed to 
provide a copy of the Inventory and Inspection Report for Unserviceable 
Property (IIRUP) to the Financial Management Division since it was their 
practice to give a copy only when the disposal is already consummated.  
While Accounting Unit was fully aware of the inventory taking conducted on 
unserviceable properties since a representative from their office witnessed 
the said inventory. It did not request for a copy of the IIRUP from the 
Property Officer even until now so that a journal entry voucher shall be 
drawn to reclassify these unserviceable properties to Other Assets account. 
 

1.5.3. The non-reclassification of unserviceable properties to Other Assets 
account resulted in the overstatement of the PPE account and the 
understatement of the Other Assets account. 
 

1.5.4. This practice is inconsistent with one of the Basic Policies and Concepts of 
the New Government Accounting System which states that: 
 
"Unserviceable assets shall be reclassified to Other Assets 

account and shall not be subject to depreciation." 
 

1.5.5. As of this writing, disposal of these properties had not  been undertaken in 
compliance with Section 79 of PD 1445 which provides among others, that: 
 
"When government property has become unserviceable , it shall 

be inspected in the presence of  the auditor.  If found to 
be valueless, it may be destroyed in his presence and if 
found valuable, it may be sold at public auction." 

 
1.5.6. We recommended and Management agreed that: 

 
a. draw a journal entry voucher to reclassify unserviceable properties 

to Other Assets account to fairly present these  in the Authority's 
financial statements, pending its disposal; and 

 
b. monitor these properties to prevent further deterioration in order 

to generate higher returns from its sale. 
 

1.5.7. Management stated that a journal entry voucher dated April 30, 2014 was 
prepared to reclassify unserviceable properties from PPE to Other Assets 
accounts. 
 

1.6. Information Technology (IT) Equipment amounting to P2,122,441.60 not provided 
with depreciation expense.  

 
1.6.1. Under the New Government Accounting System (NGAS), the recording of 

depreciation shall start on the month following the month of 
purchase/completion of construction.  The estimated salvage/residual value 
shall be pegged at ten percent of the cost. 

1.6.2. In 2013, PRA purchased IT Equipment amounting to P2,122,441.60. These 
were delivered and accepted on August 23, 2013 as evidenced by the 
delivery receipt and report of acceptance. These are as  follows: 
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Quantity Particulars Unit Price Amount 

31 Desktop computer P40,150.00 P 1,244,650.00 

 1 Desktop Computer (high-
end) Intel Prima Server 
System 

 
162,000.00 

 
      162,000.00 

13 Portable Computer 
(Laptop) 

  51,073.20       663,951.60 

32 Uninterruptible Power 
Supply 

    1,620.00         51,840.00 

Total   P 2,122,441.60 

 
1.6.3. Moreover, review of the depreciation schedule disclosed that these were 

not depreciated contrary to NGAS policy that depreciation shall start on the 
month following the month of purchase. Following this policy, and in order 
to properly compute the amount of depreciation to be charge as expense 
during the accounting period, four factors were considered, namely: 

 
a. depreciable amount (cost less its  residual value) 

                         (2,122,441.60 - 212,244.16)   P1,910,197.44 
b. residual value (2,122,441.60 - 10%)         212,244.16 
c. useful life                        5 years 
d. period of time the IT Equipment were used  

  (September - December 31, 2013)                     4 months 
 

1.6.4. Taking into consideration the above factors, depreciation expense should 
have amounted to P127,346.48 as of December 31, 2013. 
 

1.6.5. This lapse in the implementation of policy resulted in the understatement of 
the depreciation expense and the related accumulated depreciation and 
overstatement of the IT equipment and income accounts by P127,346.48. 
In addition, since subsidiary ledgers for PPEs were not maintained, this 
resulted in the non-reconciliation of the monthly general ledger balances 
with that of the subsidiary ledgers balances. The non-provision of 
depreciation should have been addressed had subsidiary ledgers been 
maintained and periodic reconciliation been done. 
 

1.6.6. We recommended that Management: 
 

a. recognize the depreciation expense on the newly acquired IT 
Equipment in accordance with NGAS policy in order to present a 
reliable balance of the IT Equipment,  depreciation expense and 
the related accumulated depreciation accounts in the financial 
statements; and 
 

b. maintain subsidiary ledgers for all PPE accounts so that periodic 
reconciliation between the general ledger and subsidiary ledgers 
could be done so as to reflect an accurate balance of the accounts. 
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1.6.7. Management submitted the following comments: 
 

a. Depreciation Expense were already provided as evidenced by 
JEV#2080411 dated February 28, 2014. 
 

b. With the approval of the PRA Rationalization Plan, one staff will now be 
assigned to maintain subsidiary ledgers. 

 
 

2. The use of the Cash Deposits from Retirees-Restricted account in the recognition 
of retirees’ share on interest earned from their required visa deposits resulted in 
the overstatement of the said account in the amount of P6,854,176.92 and 
disclosed a variance between Cash Deposits from Retirees–Restricted and Funds 
Held in Trust–Retirees’ Deposits by the same amount.  Likewise, these interests    
were erroneously recorded as Trust Liabilities under Funds Held in Trust-DBP 
Consolidated Interest Payable instead of Interest Payable.   
 
2.1. PRA has created a Retirement Program whereby a qualified retiree may avail of a 

Special Resident Retiree Visa (SRRV).  One of the eligibility requirements for the 
participation in the program is by making a requisite visa deposit by the retiree for 
PRA through inward remittance with Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP) or 
with a bank duly accredited by PRA. Then, it recommends to the Bureau of 
Immigration the issuance of the SRRV. The visa deposits are held in trust for the 
account of the retirees and placed in Negotiable Certificates of Time Deposit with 
the DBP in the name of PRA with a maturity of one year. For the CY 2013, the time 
deposits carry a one percent interest per annum of which 0.3 percent accrues to 
the retirees. 
 

2.2. Normally, the balances of the Cash Deposits from Retirees-Restricted and Funds 
Held in Trust-Retirees’ Deposits should be equal since these are contra accounts.  
However, verification of the entries made to take up the retirees’ share on  interest 
earned showed this entry: 

 
   Cash Deposits from Retirees-Restricted               xxx 

  Funds Held in Trust-DBP Consolidated   
Interest Payable                                             xxx 

 
2.3. In CY 2012, both the PRA’s and retirees’ shares were debited to the above 

account and we recommended that the interest earned from matured visa deposits 
be transferred to its dollar savings account so that the balance of the Cash 
Deposits from Retirees-Restricted account will reflect the accurate total visa 
deposits of retirees as of balance sheet date. PRA implemented the audit 
recommendation with regard to its share only, thus, this resulted in  the 
overstatement of the Cash Deposits from Retirees-Restricted in the amount of 
P6,854,176.92.  The said overstatement is shown below: 

 
    Balances, December 31,2013 
 
    Cash Deposits from Retirees-Restricted   P3,591,650,323.68 
    Funds Held in Trust-Retirees’ Deposits                 3,584,796,146.76 
    Overstatement (Represents retirees' share on interest) P        6,854,176.92 
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2.4. Furthermore, based on the journal entry, the interest representing the retirees’ 
share on their visa deposits was taken up as Funds Held in Trust-DBP 
Consolidated Interest Payable, hence, these were treated as Trust Liabilities of the 
PRA. 
 

2.5. It is our view that only the requisite visa deposits of the retirees should be 
considered as trust liabilities of PRA, hence, their share on the interest from these 
deposits should not be recorded as trust liabilities but instead as interest payable of 
PRA.  As disclosed under No. 16 of the Notes to FS, which states that these 
accounts represent the members' required visa deposit held in trust for the account 
of the retiree-members, placed in NCTD with the DBP in the name of the PRA, with 
maturity of one year.  The balances of these accounts are equivalent to the amount 
of the members' required visa deposits, net of withdrawals due to early termination 
for reasons of discontinuance of their SRRV application, cancellation of 
membership from the program, withdrawal of excess deposit or conversion of 
deposit into active investment. Therefore, there was no mention or inclusion of 
interest earned on visa deposits on these two accounts (Cash Deposits from 
Retirees-Restricted and Funds Held in Trust-Retirees' Deposits). 
 

2.6. Since the amount of P6,854,176.92 no longer forms part of the visa deposits of the 
retirees and  no longer placed in time deposits unlike that of the visa deposits, PRA 
had lost the opportunity of earning interest/benefits had this amount been 
transferred to its dollar savings account and  if it had been placed even in short 
term time deposits since whatever interest/benefits earned will  redound to the best 
interest of the retirees. 
 

2.7. We reiterated our recommendations that Management: 
 
a. request DBP to transfer retirees’ share on interest earned from visa 

deposits to PRA’s dollar savings account so that the balance of the Cash 
Deposits from Retirees-Restricted account will reflect the accurate total 
visa deposits of retirees as of balance sheet date; 

 
b. require the Finance Management Division to prepare a journal entry 

voucher (JEV) reclassifying the entry made amounting to P6,854,176.92 
from Cash Deposits from Retirees-Restricted to Cash in Bank-DBP Dollar 
Savings Account since the former represents the visa deposits only of 
the retirees; and 

 
c. reclassify the entry made from Funds Held in Trust-DBP Consolidated 

Interest Payable to Interest Payable in the amount of P6,854,176.92. 
 

2.8. Management submitted the following comments: 
 
a. They will integrate the opening of a retirees' separate account for deposit of 

their share in the interest of the requisite visa deposits in the enrollment 
system. 
 

b. JEV#2080472 dated April 30, 2014 was prepared to: 
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 To take up the transfer of interest representing retirees’ share  from Cash 
Deposits from Retirees-Restricted to Cash in Bank-DBP Dollar Savings 
Account and  
 

 Reclassify the account from Funds Held in Trust-DBP Consolidated 
Interest Payable to Interest Payable. 

 
 
3. Guaranty Deposits amounting to P1,641,976.60 included the amount of 

P355,744.40 the refund of which was not demanded by PRA despite the fact that 
the purpose(s) of these deposits had long been satisfied and their corresponding 
contracts have long been terminated. The non-refund deprived the PRA of the 
benefits or use of the said amount. Likewise, P30,000 of the said amount was 
erroneously charged to guaranty deposits instead of  expenses. 
 
3.1. Guaranty deposits represents utility deposits and other similar deposits made/paid 

by PRA to various lessors/suppliers in the performance of their services or delivery 
of goods which are refundable upon termination of the corresponding contracts or 
completion of the purpose/s for which these deposits had been required. 
 

3.2. Based on the schedule submitted, an aging/status of the account was determined.     
Details are shown on the next page: 
 

Aging/Status Amount Remarks 

Over 1 year 

Over 5 years 

Sub-total 

    P  154,000.00  

      201,744.40 

P  355,744.40 

Deposits that should have been refunded to 
PRA since the purpose of such deposits 
have long been satisfied and the contracts 
had already been terminated. 

Active Accounts      1,256,232.20 With active contracts by and between PRA 
and lessors/suppliers. 

Erroneous 
Accounts 

      30,000.00 These should have been charged to 
expense instead of guaranty deposits as 
these represented rentals and membership 
fees. 

Total P 1,641,976.60  

 
3.3. Based on the above aging/status, PRA failed to demand collection of the 

refundable deposits which had long been due them amounting to P355,744.40. 
 

3.4. Prior to the issuance of this audit observation, we discussed this with the Officer-in-
Charge, Administrative Division and this led to the collection of P79,068.20 on  
May 30, 2014 from the lessor where the Cebu Satellite Office was renting before. 
 

3.5. The non-refund by the lessors/suppliers of the deposits to PRA immediately after 
the termination of the contracts or after the purpose of the deposits had been 
consummated, had placed them in a disadvantage position since PRA had been 
deprived of the benefits, advantages and full use of the money due them. 
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3.6. We recommended that Management: 
 
a. demand for the immediate collection of refundable deposits with various 

lessors/suppliers;  
 

b. require the Accounting and Administrative Divisions to  join efforts in the 
monitoring of these deposits as soon as they are due for refund; and 

 
c. prepare an adjusting entry to correct the amount of P30,000 which was 

erroneously recorded as guaranty deposits instead of expenses. 
 

3.7. Management submitted the following comments: 
 
a. The Waterfront Cebu City had already paid P79,068.20 as evidenced by 

OR#5226150 and the check for the remaining balance is still in-process per 
inquiry with their staff. 
 

b. JEV#2080471 dated April 30, 2014 was prepared to reclassify the P30,000.00 
to the account names “Rent Expense and Membership Dues and Contributions 
to Organizations”. 

 
3.8. Management comment under 5.7.a was noted by the Audit Team as mentioned in 

Audit Observation No. 2014-06 (2013) dated June 5, 2014.  In fact, the refund 
made by Waterfront Hotel, Cebu City was a result of the discussion made by the 
Team with the Officer-in-Charge, Administrative Division prior to the issuance of 
the AOM mentioned. 
 

 
Value for Money Audit 
 
 
4. Full payment of interest of the retirees’ share with regard to interest earned on the 

requisite visa deposits was not given priority. Due to lack of monitoring and 
minimal notice sent to retirees, only P.729 million out of P7.584 million or 9.62 per 
cent was released.  In terms of the number of retirees, only 124 out of the 2,952 
retirees or 4.20 per cent were paid their shares. 
 
4.1. The issuance of interest to PRA Retirees based on the established procedure 

prepared by the  PRA Banking Committee as provided in the Process Flow Chart 
are as follows: 
 
a. The Finance Division will generate a report which will contain the computation 

of interest payable to retirees with active account in the DBP. The percentage 
of the interest to be given to the retirees is to be predetermined yearly by the 
PRA Banking Committee.  From June 2011 to May 2012, the banking 
committee established a rate of 0.3 per cent. 
 

b. A distinct and separate account is to be established, in DBP which will be 
exclusively used as a depository account for the interest to be paid to retirees. 
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c. After the account is established, the retirees will be notified that they are 
entitled to receive the interest. 
 

d. The retirees will then decide whether the interest will be credited to their 
account or a separate peso or dollar account in their name will be established 
in DBP.  There will be no direct cash payment to be made to any retiree. 
 

e. A letter from PRA will be sent to all entitled retirees together with a form they 
can use to express how they prefer to receive their interest.  The notice of 
interest payment will also be posted in the PRA website. 
 

f. The PRA Banking Committee will oversee the disbursement of the interest due 
to PRA Retirees. 

 
4.2. Presented below is the table on  Interest Payable of PRA to retirees, viz: 

 

Particulars 2012 2013 Total 

Recorded    

  Number of retirees 668 2,284          2,952 

  Amount P1,930,556.53 P5,652,988.42 P7,583,544.95 

Payments Made    

  Number of retirees 12   112   124 

  Amount       33,223.29     696,144.74      729,368.03 

Balance    

  Number of retirees 656 2,172 2,828 

  Amount P1,897,333.24 P4,956,843.68 P6,854,176.92 

 
4.3. Based on the above table, the following observations were noted: 

 
a. The account showed that P1,930,556.53 and P5,652,988.42 in CYs 2012 and 

2013 respectively, or a total of P7,583,544.95 was booked as interest payable 
to retirees; 
 

b. Of the amount booked, only the amount of P33,233.29 and P696,144.74 for 
CYs 2012 and 2013 respectively, or a total of P729,368.03 was paid to retirees 
as of December 31, 2013; 
 

c. The unpaid interest amounted to P1,897,333.24 in CY 2012 and P4,956,843.68 
in CY 2013, leaving a balance of the  interest payable to retirees amounting to  
P6,854,176.92 as of December 31,2013; 
 

d. Of the 2,952 total retirees entitled to the interest, 12 were paid in CY 2012    
and 112 in CY 2013 for a total of 124 retirees only; and 

 
e. Of the 124 retirees paid as of 2013, 110 of which were paid interest due to  the 

fact that they have either withdrawn from the program or have converted their 
visa deposits into investments thereby, PRA has no choice but to compute and 
pay for the corresponding interest due them while only 14 were paid specifically 
for the interest that was already due them. 
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4.4. Moreover, in our verification and review of the procedures in the issuance of 
interest to retirees, we noted that: 

 
a. There was no predetermined interest rate established by the Banking 

Committee for the period, June 2012 up to  the present since the amount 
booked  was still based on the predetermined rate of 0.3% from June 2011 to 
May 2012; 
 

b. Establishment of a distinct and separate account in DBP which will be 
exclusively used as depository account for the interest to be paid to retirees 
was not followed; 
 

c. Most of the retirees were not notified that they are entitled to receive the 
interest; 
 

d. A letter from PRA was not sent to all entitled retirees together with a form they 
can use to express how they prefer to receive their interest. The notice of 
interest payment was never posted in the PRA website; and 
 

e. The only procedure that was followed was that the PRA Banking Committee 
had overseen the disbursement of interest due to retirees but only to a very few 
retirees. 
 

4.5. The non-implementation of PRA of its procedures in the issuance of interest to 
retirees resulted in the payment of P729,368.03 or 9.62 percent only out of the total 
interest of P7,583,544.95  and  124  or 4 percent only out of the 2,952 number of 
retirees. Likewise, this only shows that PRA is less determined to enforce its own 
procedures in the payment of interest to retirees. 
 

4.6. We recommended that Management intensify its efforts in providing interest 
payments to a greater number of retirees.  Furthermore, it is suggested that 
Management implement the procedures in the payment of interests. 

 
4.7. Management stated that the 0.3 per cent interest rate given to the retirees was 

unanimously decided by the PRA Banking Committee to retain it from the 
established rate on June 2011 – May 2012. PRA believes that giving the almost 
the same rate as offered by the banks can encourage more retirees to enroll. 
 

4.8. It is the Team's position that since the PRA Banking Committee unanimously 
decided to retain the interest rate established for the period June 2011 - May 2012, 
a Committee Resolution should have been issued which should have been the 
basis in taking up the interest payable to retirees for the period, June 2012 - 
December 2013. 
 

4.9. Management further stated that it was the intention of the PRA Banking Committee 
to open an account exclusively for crediting of the interest to be paid to the retirees.  
However, to ensure control and proper monitoring of accounts namely the 
Receiving and Disbursing Account, the opening of another account for the interest 
was postponed.  The focus was towards the handling of the two newly established 
accounts and booking of transactions to be defined that time.  As a process, 
Receiving Account exclusively be for remittances while Disbursing Account will be 
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exclusively for funds ready for disbursement/payment to the retirees.  As such, 
interest due to retirees were also credited to Disbursing Account for the mean time. 
 

4.10. Management likewise stated, that in line with the audit recommendation, PRA is 
now ready to move towards opening of another account with DBP to accommodate 
the retiree's share in the interest in preparation for subsequent release to retiree 
depositors. It already had the sample form "Request Form for Payment of Interest 
Earned" for approval to be posted in the PRA Website.  The Marketing Department 
is now informing retiree-applicants on their inquiry on the interest given by PRA, 
which is due on a yearly basis.  

 
 

5. Cash advances amounting to P327,619.48 were not liquidated within the 
prescribed period contrary to Sections 4.1.3 and 5.1.3 of COA Circular 97-002 
dated February 10, 1997 
 
5.1. Section 4.1.3 of COA Circular 97-002 provides that a cash advance shall be 

reported on as soon as the purpose for which it was given has been served. 
 

5.2. Section 5.1.3 of the said Circular states that liquidation of cash advances on official 
travel is within sixty (60) days after return to the Philippines in the case of foreign 
travel or within thirty (30) days after return to his permanent official station in the 
case of local travel. 
 

5.3. Moreover, the same Section provides that failure of the accountable officer to 
liquidate his cash advance within the prescribed period shall constitute a valid 
cause for the withholding of his salary and the instruction of other sanctions as 
provided for under paragraphs 9.2 and 9.3 of the said circular. 
 

5.4. During the year, cash advances totaling P327,619.48granted for local and foreign 
travels were liquidated beyond 30 and 60 days period which was inconsistent with 
Section 5.1.3 of COA Circular No. 97-002 dated February 10, 1997 as shown 
below: 
 

Check No. Date Amount of Cash 
Advance 

Liquidation 
Period 

No. of Days 
Liquidated* 

2475409 01/17/2013 P   43,400.00      30 days      72 days 

2516953 07/30/2013    100,000.00      30 days      64 days 

2475599 01/28/2013      15,000.00      30 days      41 days 

2080056 07/23/2013    143,859.48      60 days    122 days 

2491701 05/06/2013        8,400.00      30 days             166 days 

2516533 07/08/2013      16,960.00      30 days                62 days 

 
* The No. of Days Liquidated included the 30 and 60 day period to liquidate local 

and foreign travel respectively 
 

5.5. It was likewise noted that cash advances were granted in excess of necessity 
based on the liquidations made. Amount refunded ranged from P4,198 to P 84,011 
representing 41.98 to 84.01 percent of the cash advance granted. Details are 
shown on the next page: 
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Check No. Date Amount of Cash 
Advance 

Amount 
Refunded 

Percentage 
of Refund 

No. of 
Days 

Refunded 

2475409 01/17/2013 P    43,400.00 P  18,016.48 41.51    72 days 

2516953 07/30/2013     100,000.00      84,011.00 84.01    64 days 

2541182 11/22/2013       55,000.00      37,278.00 67.78  
 

Refunded 
within the 
prescribed 

period 

2541083 11/18/2013       15,000.00        5,387.27 35.91 

2541542 12/16/2013         7,000.00        5,673.28 81.05 

2080226 10/30/2013       64,725.00      45,354.75 70.07 

2491597 04/29/2013       10,000.00        4,198.00 41.98 

2491793 05/10/2013       20,000.00      14,800.00 74.00 

2492375 06/11/2013       10,000.00        5,314.00 53.14 

2517324 08/23/2013       10,000.00        6,106.00 61.06 

2476366 03/06/2013       13,900.00        9,940.00 71.51 

 
5.6. Cash advances granted in excess of what was needed may expose the 

accountable officers to possible risks or losses and is not in accordance with sound 
internal control. 
 

5.7. We reiterated our recommendations that Management: 
 
a. strictly enforce liquidations as soon as the purpose for which the cash   

advance  had been served; 
 

b. observe the prescribed period of 30 and 60 days within which to     
liquidate cash advances granted for local and foreign travels, respectively 
in compliance with Section 5.1.3 of COA Circular 97-002; 
 

c. prepare  budget estimates that are realistic enough so that refunds or 
excess cash advances of great percentage as shown under 6.5 will be 
avoided and the accountable officer may not be exposed to possible risk 
or losses; and  
 

d. require the Finance Division to regularly monitor cash advances with 
delayed liquidation and enforce its prompt liquidation. 
 

5.8. Management informed the Audit Team that the Financial Management Division is 
now enforcing the strict liquidation and follow-up of the unliquidated cash advance 
granted in compliance with Section 5.1.3 of COA Circular 97-002.  

 
6. The PRA granted cash advances for the purchase of commemorative watches as 

loyalty memorabilia for employees who had completed continuous and 
satisfactory service to  it for at least 10 years which was inconsistent with the 
loyalty incentive under the PRA Program on Awards and Incentives for Service 
Excellence (PRAISE). 

 
6.1. Under the PRA PRAISE, the loyalty incentive specified for the giving of loyalty 

memorabilia aside from the incentive in the form of cash are shown below: 
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Length of Service Loyalty Memorabilia 

10 and 15 years Commemorative watch 

20 and 25 years Commemorative silver  watch 

20, 35 and 40 years Commemorative gold watch 

 
6.2. Cash advances were granted during the year to recipients of the loyalty incentive 

for the purchase of commemorative watches as loyalty memorabilia for employees 
who had completed 10,  20,and 25 years of service for which a P10,000, P20,000 
and P25,000 cash advances were granted respectively  under the  PRA Program 
on Awards and Incentives for Service Excellence (PRAISE). 
 

6.3. The Audit Team’s comments/observations on the manner the award was given to 
the employees concerned were as follows: 

 
a. Under the PRA PRAISE there was no mentioned of the equivalent amount for 

each length of service  in the giving of loyalty memorabilia, e.g.: 
 
a.1   P10,000.00 for 10 years of service 
a.2      20,000.00 for 20 years of service 
a.3      25,000.00 for 25 years of service 

 
b. The loyalty memorabilia was given to employees in the form of cash advance 

wherein the latter will be the one to decide on what kind of commemorative 
watch they are going to purchase. 
 

c. Upon the grant of the cash advance, the concerned employees purchase a 
watch of her/his choice regardless of quantity and amount for those who prefer 
to purchase a higher value than the amount of cash advanced  as long as he 
has to present the watch purchased for inspection and  submit the required 
official receipt to liquidate the cash advance granted. 
 

d. Delayed liquidation of cash advances to purchase the supposed 
commemorative watch were noted. 

 
6.4. We recommended that Management: 

 
a. stop the practice of granting loyalty memorabilia/incentive by procuring 

through cash advance to be purchased by the recipients themselves; 
 

b. require the PRAISE Committee to come up with an appropriate award 
and/or commemorative item or equivalent  to be purchased for each 
loyalty/length of service category such that the said item to be awarded 
for each category should be of the same value, kind, style, design, make 
and quality; and 
 

c. implement the incentive based  on a duly approved PRA PRAISE. 
 

6.5. Management informed the Audit Team that the PRAISE guidelines are now being 
revised by the PRAISE Committee to come up with an appropriate memorabilia 
since not all employees have the same notion of commemoration. 
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7. We reiterate our prior years’ audit observation that PRA had not been 

incorporating plans and programs for Gender and Development (GAD) in its 
operations contrary to the Philippine Plan for Gender and Development for 1995 – 
2025 as approved under Executive Order No. 273. 
 
7.1. Government agencies are mandated to incorporate plans and programs for GAD in 

their agency under Executive Order No. 273 – Approving and Adopting the 
Philippine Plan for GAD , 1995 – 2025 and Joint Circular No. 2004-1 dated April 5, 
2004 of the Department of Budget and Management (DBM), National Economic 
and Development Authority (NEDA), and National Commission on the Role of 
Filipino Women (NCRFW). 
 

7.2. PRA failed to incorporate gender and development concerns in their planning, 
programming and budgeting processes, commitment contracts, annual budget 
proposals and work and financial plans, which should include activities that are 
either client-focused or organization-focused. 
 

7.3. We recommended that Management incorporate plans and budget for 
Gender and Development in compliance with the Philippine Plan for Gender 
and Development for 1995 – 2025 under Executive Order No. 273.Future 
Gender and Development Plans shall be guided by Joint Circular No. 2012-01 
which provides for the guidelines for the preparation of Annual GAD Plans 
and Budgets and Accomplishment Reports to implement the Magna Carta of 
Women and institutionalize the GAD Focal Point System in compliance with 
Memorandum Circular 2011-01 of the Philippine Commission on Women. 
 

7.4. Management informed that GAD plans, programs, and budgets are now included 
for the CY 2014 which shall be in accordance with the Joint Circular 2012-1 of 
DBM, NEDA and NCRFW. 

 
 
Status of Unsettled Audit Disallowances, Charges and Suspensions 
 
 
Below is the summary of the unsettled audit disallowances, charges and   
suspensions as of December 31, 2013: 
 

 
 

Audit Action 

Beginning 
Balance, 

January 1, 2013 

 
 

Issued 

 
 

Settled 
 

Ending Balance, 
December 31, 

2013 

Suspension P 2,230,021.64  P 589,822.84 P 1,640,198.80 

Disallowances    7,357,938.48     135,875.00    7,222,063.48 

Charges            -               - 

Total P 9,587,960.12  P 725,697.84 P 8,862,262.28 
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  STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PRIOR YEARS’ AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
 Of the 34 prior year’s audit recommendations embodied in the previous year’s Annual Audit Report, 27 
 were implemented, 6  were partially implemented and 1 were not implemented. 
 

 
Audit Observation 

 
Recommendation/s 

 
Management 

Comments/Actions 

 
1. The year-end balances of 

the Cash Deposits from 
Retirees-Restricted and 
Funds Held in Trust-
Retirees’ Deposits  in the 
amount of P2,041.751 
million and  P2,032.523 
million respectively were 
not reconciled showing a 
variance of P9.228 million 
thereby casting doubts on 
the accuracy of the 
balances of the said 
accounts in the Financial 
Statements (FS).  
Likewise, both balances 
were understated in the 
FS by P85.183 million due 
to double recording of 
withdrawals of retirees’ 
deposits. 

 
 

 
We recommended that 
Management take action of  the 
following: 
 

a. Instruct DBP  to transfer 
all interests earned from 
matured visa deposits to 
the Authority’s dollar 
savings account so that 
the balance of the Cash 
Deposits from Retirees-
Restricted account will 
reflect the accurate total 
visa deposits of retirees 
as of balance sheet date; 
 

b. Prepare a journal entry 
voucher reclassifying the 
entry made amounting to 
P9.228 million from Cash 
Deposits from Retirees-
Restricted to Cash in 
Bank-DBP Dollar 
Savings Account since 
the former represents the 
visa deposits only of the 
retirees; 
 

c. Draw a JEV to correct 
the entries made on the 
double recording of 
withdrawals on retirees’ 
visa deposits amounting 
to P85.183 million; and 
 

d. Assign a responsible 
official/employee of the 
Authority to regularly 
monitor and review the 
processes of retirees’ 
visa deposits so that 
errors/variance 
mentioned above shall 
be avoided. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Partially Implemented. 
 
Reiterated under number 3, 
Part II of the Audit 
Observations and 
Recommendations of the 
2013 Annual Audit Report.  
 
 
 
 
 
Partially Implemented. 
 
Reiterated under number 3, 
Part II of the 2013 Annual 
Audit Report.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
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2. PRA’s inability to 

recognize the effects of 
changes in foreign 
exchange rates   on the 
required visa deposits or 
investment requirements 
of retirees/members 
placed at the DBP at 
reporting date in the 
amount of P52.013 
million resulted in the 
overstatement of the 
Cash Deposits from 
Retirees-Restricted and 
the corresponding Funds 
Held in Trust-Retirees’ 
Deposits accounts. 

 
 

 
We recommended that 
Management recognize in its 
books the following 
transactions in accordance 
with PAS/IAS 21 : 
 
a. Record retirees 

placements/ investments 
(on initial recognition) at 
an exchange rate at the 
date of transaction. 

 
b. Translate foreign 

currency denominated 
transaction at the 
exchange rate at 
balance sheet/reporting 
date and recognize the 
effects of changes in 
foreign exchange rates 
between the transaction 
date and at balance 
sheet date.  The 
exchange difference 
amounting to P52.013 
million should be 
reflected in the books as 
follows:  
 

Funds Held in Trust-Retirees 
Deposits          P52,012,618.35 

Cash Deposits from 
Retirees-Restricted 
            P52,012,618.35 
 

c. Record withdrawals of 
retirees’ 
placements/investments 
using the foreign 
exchange rate at the date 
of the transaction.                      

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 

Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Implemented. 

 
3. Unreleased checks of the 

Authority as of year-end 
amounting to P3.793 
million were not restored 
to the Cash in Bank and 
appropriate 
payable/liability accounts 
contrary to Sections 2.3 
and 2.4 of COA GAFMIS 
Circular Letter No. 2002-

 
We recommended that 
Management undertake the 
following: 

 
a. A JEV to record the 

entry for the restoration 
of cash equivalent to the 
unreleased checks and 
recognition of the 
payable/liability accounts 

 
 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
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001 dated December 16, 
2002. 

 

 

at the end of the year; 
and 

 
b. A reversing entry to 

restore the cash and 
appropriate 
payable/liability accounts 
to the correct balances 
at the start of the 
ensuing year. 

   

 
 
 
Implemented. 

  
4. The granting and 

liquidation of cash 
advances were 
inconsistent with COA 
Circular Nos. 97-002 
dated February 10, 1997 
and 2009-002 dated May 
18, 2009. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
We recommended that the 
concerned PRA officers 
strictly observe the following: 
 
a. Comply with COA 

Circular No. 97-002 on 
the grant of cash 
advance and discontinue 
the grant of additional 
cash advance to 
accountable officers with 
unsettled/ unliquidated 
previous cash advances. 

 
b. Require the submission 

of an estimate or 
breakdown of 
expenditures which are 
realistic enough (with 
only about 10 per cent 
contingency) and duly 
approved by the official 
concerned to serve as 
the basis of the amount 
of cash advance to avoid 
the risk of mishandling 
unutilized cash advance. 
 

c. Demand for the 
immediate liquidation 
and settlement of all 
unliquidated cash 
advances pursuant to 
COA Circular No. 97-
002.                                   

 

 
 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Partially Implemented. 
 
Reiterated under No. 10, 
Part II of the 2013 Annual 
Audit Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
 
Reiterated under No.13, 
Part II of the 2013 Annual 
Audit Report. 

 
5. The liquidation report by 

the Department Manager 
(DM) - Marketing relative 
to her foreign travel from 
June 19 to July 4, 2011 

 
We recommended that 
Management direct the DM-
Marketing to submit the official 
receipts issued by the concerned 
hotels or by the Department of 

 
Not Implemented. 
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was not supported with 
official receipts (ORs) of 
expenses to establish 
validity of expenses in 
the amount of $14,500 or 
its equivalent of 
P631,112.50. 

 
 

Tourism for payment of the 
cocktails sponsored by PRA to 
support the full liquidation of her 
cash advance. 

 

 
6. Fund utilization of 

P128.232 million for 
calendar year 2012 
exceeded  the budgeted 
expenditures of P125.924 
million by P2.308 million, 
while expenses 
amounting to P2.029 
million were not included 
in the budget and the 
amount of P23.818 
million were grossly 
underutilized. 

 
 
 

 

 
We recommended that 
Management: 
 

a. Limit expenditures within 
the budget and justify 
the negative variance 
between the actual 
utilization and approved 
budget.  Request for a 
realignment of the 
budget or submit a 
supplemental budget to 
the DBM and implement 
strictly the 
approved/realigned 
budget; 
 

b. Stop the practice of 
setting overly high 
expense projections 
particularly those 
expenses which are the 
fund sources of the CNA 
incentive in order to earn 
savings for purposes of 
granting the CNA; and 

 
c. Require the accounting 

and budget division to 
closely monitor the 
utilization of funds and 
prepare periodic reports 
to assess whether funds 
were utilized as 
budgeted. 

 

 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7. Taxes deducted and 

withheld by the Authority 
were not remitted fully to 
the      Bureau of Internal 
Revenue (BIR) contrary 
to the provisions of the 
National Internal Revenue 

 
We recommended that 
Management: 

 
a. Ensure that all taxes 

deducted and withheld 
are fully remitted on the 
prescribed period. 

 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
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Code (NIRC) of 1997 (as 
amended) on the 
remittance of taxes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
b. Strictly adhere with the 

laws, rules and 
regulations on the 
remittance of taxes 
withheld in accordance 
with the provisions of the 
NIRC, to avoid payment 
of penalty or surcharges 
by the accounting official. 

 
Implemented. 

 
8. The non-adherence with 

the fundamental 
principles on government 
transactions, breakdown 
in internal control on 
segregation of 
incompatible functions 
and non-maintenance of 
the books of accounts 
were contrary to Sections 
4, 114, and 123-124 of PD 
1445, resulting in 
disbursements which 
were not approved and 
supported with 
necessary documents 
and were suspended in 
audit amounting to 
P1.986 million and 
delayed submission of 
financial statements 
thereby affecting the  
timely delivery of audit 
services. 

 
 

 

 
We recommended that 
Management: 
 
a. Maintain complete set of 

books of accounts at all 
times to establish 
correctness, accuracy 
and reliability of the 
accounts reflected in the 
financial statements 
pursuant to Sections 114 
and 121 of PD 1445; 
 

b. Comply with the 
fundamental principles 
on the financial 
transactions and 
operations of the agency 
pursuant to Section 4 (6) 
of PD 1445; 
 

c. Observe the purpose for 
which the petty cash 
fund was established 
such that all small 
amount of 
disbursements shall be 
taken from the petty 
cash fund; 
 

d. Submit financial 
statements together with 
complete files of  
DVs/JVs/LVs/ORs 
including supporting 
documents and the 
missing JVs and/or DVs; 
 

e. Require that DVs are 
duly approved before 
issuance of checks; 
 

 
 
 
 
Partially Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Partially Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
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f. Ensure that the basic 
requirements of internal 
control on segregation of 
incompatible functions 
are observed so that no 
one person shall be in 
complete control of/has 
access to assets and 
records, authorization 
and execution of 
transactions; 
 

g. Assign another 
personnel to do the 
bookkeeping and 
preparation of financial 
statements pursuant to 
Section 123, PD 1445; 
and 
 

h. Establish controls in the 
recording of transactions 
so that all transactions 
recorded must always 
be signed/approved by 
the Accountant. 
 
 

Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
9. Validity of the payments 

made for 2011 CNA 
Incentive  paid in 2012 
could not be established 
since it was not fully 
supported with 
documents  provided 
under Sections 3.1, 3.2.1, 
3.2.2, 3.2.3 and  3.6  of  
DBM Budget Circular No. 
2011-5 dated December 
26, 2011.  Moreover, the 
agency fee collected from 
non-employees’ 
association members and 
accredited union 
members were not the 
same as reviewed by the 
Civil Service Commission 
(CSC). 

 
 

 
We recommended that: 
 
Management must comply with 
CSC rules and regulations 
authorizing the grant of benefits 
to avoid confusion/conflict vis-à-
vis CNA Incentives particularly 
on the computation of agency 
fee; and 

 
We further recommended that  
Management to submit reports 
on accomplishments, 
computation of savings 
generated, copy of MFO, OPIF 
and the annual report on the 
total expenditures for CNA 
Incentive submitted to the DBM 
in  compliance with the 
provisions stated under DBM 
Budget Circular No. 2011-5 
particularly Sections 3.1 and 
3.2.1;  3.2.2,s 3.2.3 and 3.6. 
 
 

 
 
 
Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
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10. Copies of contracts 

executed by PRA and 
their supporting 
documents were not 
furnished to COA within 
five (5) working days, 
upon their perfection 
contrary to COA 
Circular No. 2009-001. 

 
 

 
We recommended that 
Management comply strictly on 
the furnishing of copies of 
contracts including their 
supporting documents to COA 
within five (5) working days. 

 
Implemented. 

 
11. Payments for airline 

tickets relative to foreign 
travels by the officials of 
the Authority were in 
violation of Section 10 of 
Executive Order (EO) and 
Section 3.1.A.2, COA 
Circular No. No. 85-55A. 
Likewise, foreign travel 
of the Department 
Manager, Admin and 
Finance was not in 
accordance with Section 
16 (c) of the General 
Provisions of the General 
Appropriations Act of 
2012. 

 
We recommended that 
Management undertake the 
following: 

 
a. Stop the practice of 

availing 
accommodations other 
than the economy mode 
of transportation unless 
approved by the 
President and specified 
in the travel order; 
 

b. Submit the agency’s 
Travel Bible or a copy 
thereof  at the beginning 
of the year together with 
the agency’s Project 
Procurement 
Management Plan and 
Annual Procurement 
Plan to support claims 
for travelling expenses 
for audit purposes; 
 

c. Support payments for 
airline tickets  with 
complete 
documentation; and 
 

d. Comply strictly with the 
provisions of Section 16 
(c) of the General 
Provisions of the 
General Appropriations 
Act of 2012 on the 
prohibition of any official 
or employee to attend 
foreign training, 
conference and 
international 

 
 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Implemented. 
 
 
 
 
Implemented 
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commitments when they 
are due to retire within 
one year after the said 
foreign travel. 

 

 
12. We reiterate our prior 

years’ audit observation 
that PRA had not been 
incorporating plans and 
budget for Gender and 
Development (GAD) in its 

 
We recommended that 
Management incorporate plans 
and budget for Gender and 
Development in compliance 
with the Philippine Plan for 
Gender and Development for 
1995 – 2025 under Executive 
Order No. 273. 

 
Not Implemented. 
 
Reiterated under  No. 12, 
Part II of the 2013 Annual 
Audit Report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 


